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To All Offerors:

Attached are written questions received in response to this RFP.  These questions, along with the State's response, become an official amendment to this RFP.
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Addrfp(Q&A)
	"AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER"	Revised 2/11

	
Question Number
	Page Number
	Section Number
	Questions & Answers for RFP#15-3010T

	1. 
	TCO workbook
	Appendix E
Tab 1
	Q.	Is the recovery site mentioned on this tab need to be a “hot site” one that is continuously update with immediate fail over capabilities, or one that data can be backed up to on scheduled times without immediate failover capabilities.

A.	For an on-premise solution, the State will provide the backup site and it will not be a “hot” site. For a cloud-based solution, assume the same setup (not “hot”) for your backup of the State’s ECM solution. Make a special note if you can provide a “hot” site for the same price as a plain backup site.

	2. 
	n/a
	n/a
	Q.	We know a lot about the data in FileNet, but how much data lies in each of the existing management solutions? (Microsoft CRM, Laserfiche, Docuware, SharePoint, Perceptive Software, Tyler-Eagle Recorder, C-Trak, and the Home Grown systems).

A.	See the answer to question 1 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	3. 
	n/a
	n/a
	Q.	Do you have information on the amount of data that lies in all of your current systems (except FileNet, that information is provided)?

A.	See the answer to question 1 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	4. 
	n/a
	n/a
	Q.	If the team has an on-site component, what percentage of the team would need to be on-site to meet this requirement?

A.	See the answer to question 6 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	5. 
	105
	Appendix C 
Para 4
	Q.	The references that are cited as needed in paragraph 4 of pg. 105, are these needed to be submitted with proposal, or prepared to submit upon request further down the selection process?

A.	The State is removing the clause in question, leaving only, “The offeror shall describe the responsibilities of both the offeror and the State in order for this to be successfully achieved.”

	6. 
	22
	3.3.1
	Q.	Can you confirm that in the pilot project there will be no conversion and that workflow diagrams, process objectives, and future state goals will be provided ahead of bid due date in order to properly scope the effort.

A.	The State incorrectly stated there would be no conversion as part of the MWorks pilot. There will be a conversion effort that is part of the MWorks pilot. The existing documents that are recreated “on the fly” will be printed out and scanned into the new ECM system and will be viewable through MWorks. There are approximately 200-300 active client cases in the system today, with an average of 100 documents per client. That leads to a maximum number of documents to be converted of 30,000. Use this number in your costing.

MWorks is a workforce case management system that includes a labor exchange component. A labor exchange component is a system that allows employers to make postings about job openings and allows job seekers to view those postings and make their own indicating a desire for work. The system can match job seekers with employers. There is also a training component to the system.

Technical specs:

· Oracle Forms and Reports 11g
· PL/SQL
· Weblogic app server
· Oracle 11.2.0.3.0 database
· Notes are assembled into PDF documents
· Up to 5 retention rules
· Up to 5 workflows. There are no MWorks workflow diagrams at this time.
· Documents containing confidential info do not have to be redacted or secured differently from other case documents
· There are anywhere between 20 and 50 users at any given time.
· The scanning is done manually and uploaded from the desktop computer.
· MWorks does not currently store any documents. The data that is used to reassemble documents is stored in the Oracle database, with most of the text stored in VARCHAR2 columns.
· The MWorks system as it is today will remain in place, with new content management functionality added to it demonstrating the listed features.


	7. 
	15
	3.1.4
	Q.	In this and many other sections the word users is mentioned, in this context 600 – 2000.  For scoping purposes are these assumed to be individual “named” users with distinct log ins, or “concurrent users” i.e. the numbers of people who will be concurrently using the solution representing a much larger user pool?

A.	See the answer to question 4 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	8. 
	16
	3.2.2.1
	Q.	Will there be detailed architecture or technical specifications provided in order to determine feasibility of integrating with the MWorks Platform.

A.	See the answer to question 6.

	9. 
	16
	3.2.2.1
	Q.	In Section 3.2.2.1, the RFP states: “Two local offices will participate: Havre and Missoula.  All work will be done in Helena.” Question: Is it possible to have Helena defined as any location within a 2 hour drive?

A.	See the answer to question 5 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	10. 
	22
	3.3.2
	Q.	I would like to know if you require that the vendor have an on-site location in Helena MT? Or would you allow work/implementation to be done remotely (allows significant savings) we would still come out for in-person meetings like our kick-off meeting and “go live” meeting, and other in person meetings deemed necessary between us and your contacts.

A.	See the answer to question 6 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	11. 
	22
	3.3.2
	Q.	Would a hybrid approach where on project site is used for on premise configuration and testing while work for geographically agnostic functions is completed remotely acceptable?

A.	See the answer to question 6 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	12. 
	19
	3.2.4.1
	Q.	What difficulties are anticipated, and what difficulties have been faced previously, by people within the department convincing other agencies to use their services?

A.	The State faces and anticipates facing the same challenges that any organization faces when it comes to providing services to other organizations. The State Information Technology Services Division cannot force the agencies to use our services, but must prove our solution is one they can both afford and will meet their needs. This is why we are looking to the contractor for help with marketing.

	13. 
	21
	3.2.5.11
	Q.	Can you confirm that any public access users would be read only and not have any other rights.

A.	The public will be using the solution to both view existing content/documents and submit new content. The content being submitted may take the form of “fillable” documents and/or forms, and shall allow for attachments or the ability to submit attachments along with submitted forms. In addition, public users may submit documents such as applications and require the ability to edit those documents should they be informed by the State of errors or the need for additional information, and submit new versions.

	14. 
	51
	5.1.2
	Q.	The method used to calculate the average cost per user seems to artificially inflate the cost of the solution for acceptance of the pass fail cost criteria in section 5.1.2.  In the section it states that the average cost per basic user will be calculated as follows:

        Sum of all vendor and State costs directly attributable to basic users) + (sum of all vendor and State costs attributable to both basic and advanced users x 60%) divided by the total number of basic solution users at the end of the year.

In trying to understand this methodology the following inputs to the equation were used:
Vendor cost per basic users: $400 
State cost per basic user: $100
Vendor Cost per advanced user: $1200
State Cost per advanced user: $200
Number of Basic Users:600
Number of Advanced users: 400

Actual Total Basic user cost: 
($400 * 600) + ($100 * 600) = (240,000) + (60,000) = $300,000

Actual Total Advanced user Cost:
($1200 * 400) + ($200 * 400) = (480,000) + (80,000) = $560,000

Actual Average Cost:
Basic:
$300,000/600 = $500
Advanced:
$560,000/400 = $1400

State Calculation method for average cost per user:
( ($300,000) + ( ($300,000+$560,000)*60%) ) / 600
( ($300,000) + ( (860,000)*60%) ) / 600
( ($300,000) + ( (516,000) ) / 600
( $816,000 ) / 600
$1360 per Basic user

Can you explain why the calculated average cost used for consideration is at least double the actual cost that will be incurred/charged to the state?

A. See the answer to question 8 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	15. 
	52
	5.2.1
	Q.	What is, or what do you expect, the not to exceed amount to be for travel?

A.	See the answer to question 9 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	16. 
	52
	5.2.1
	Q.	There was mentioned in the call of a $1,000,000 not to exceed amount. Is this budget for the first year, the pilot, or some combination?

A.	See the answer to question 10 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	17. 
	8
	1.7.1
	Q.	The RFP states “Use the space provided following each subsection or question that requires a response, unless otherwise instructed:” and an “Offeror Response” area is displayed in an outlined box/table area.
•	Is it the intent of the State that all prospective vendors use the actual RFP document to provide our response?
•	May prospective vendors use their own proposal response template following the order of information requested by the State in 1.7.1 of the RFP?
•	If a prospective vendor is permitted to use their own proposal response template, must we repeat the state’s questions/requirements from the RFP prior to our answer?
•	If prospective vendors are able to use their own proposal response template, is it a requirement of the State to provide our answers in an “outlined box area” to clearly designate our answers?

A.	See the answer to question 11 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	18. 
	16
	3.2.2.1
	Q.	In Section 3.2.2.1 it states “MWorks does not currently store any actual documents, but reassembles documents “on the fly” using data stored in the system database.” 
•	The 8th bullet of this section requests the ability for the ECM to “demonstrate the ability to integrate with MWorks to upload documents”. Is the State requesting the proposed ECM solution be able to transfer documents from the ECM to MWorks? Please clarify.

A.	The solution shall allow users of the MWorks system to upload documents from the MWorks application itself to the ECM solution. We’re looking for an integrated solution that can use the existing MWorks application to support and facilitate uploading documents to ECM. This is as opposed to begin forced to exit MWorks, pull up a different and separate application merely to upload documents. We want to be able to make this process appear to our users as a seamless, integrated product, not two products.

	19. 
	17 & other areas
	3.2.2.2 and other areas
	Q.	In Section 3.2.2.2, the RFP states “If your proposed solution is NOT IBM FileNet, this section shall be left blank and it will not be scored.” Throughout the response there are several requirements where it states if the topic does not apply to your solution, leave the section blank.
•	May we place in our response the words “Not applicable to our solution” instead of leaving the area blank?

A.	Yes.

	20. 
	29
	3.4.2
	Q.	Question 24 states “Does your solution support distributed content capture?”
•	What does the State mean by “distributed” content capture? Please clarify.

A.	The ability to capture content in multiple locations and from multiple sources. Describe your solutions abilities.

	21. 
	30
	3.4.2
	Q.	Question 27 states “Describe your solution’s automatic summarization and content classification capabilities.”
•	What does the State mean by “automatic summarization”? Please clarify.

A.	Automatically producing summaries/abstracts of documents and generating metadata from content.

	22. 
	30
	3.4.2
	Q.	Question 31 states “Describe file plan creation and maintenance features (including retention schedule administration).”
•	What does the State mean by “file plan creation”? Please clarify.

A.	FILE PLANS

File plans are recommended by all major records management organizations, including the Association of Records Managers and Administrators (ARMA), National Archives and Records Administration (NARA), and Association for Information and Image Management (AIIM).  File plan documents specify how records are to be organized once they have been designated or received, provide a “roadmap” to the records created and maintained by an organizational unit, and facilitate dispositioning of the records. 

File plans differ from office to office, but usually consist of:
· Description of the kinds of documents identified to be records
· The classification of the records into wide range of categories
· Details about the location of the stored records
· Retention schedule assignment
· Assigning the responsibility for certain types of records

File Plans consist of two parts as described below:  (1) a file structure and (2) a file plan.

FILE STRUCTURE
A file structure (see Table 2) provides a framework for file plans.  A file structure identifies:
· the top-level categories of records arranged by business functions
· the organization that generates records in that category
· the types of records that fall within that category

Once the file structure is complete, the category types are used as the starting point of the file plan.
	Table 2:  File Structure
Division X File Structure, Rev 2                              
Latest revision:  1/1/2014                                                                                                              

	Category No.
	Category Title
	Records Generator
	Record Category Types

	1
	Administrative Operations
	Admin
Bureau1
Project 3
	
Correspondance, minutes, polices, procedures, standards, etc.

	2
	Quality Assurance
	Admin
Bureau 1
	QA Audits, Quality Management Plan, QA improvement reports and corrective action plans created by OIT.

	3
	Plans & Reports
	Admin
Bureau 2
	Operational reports, backup plans, disaster recovery, etc.



FILE PLAN
A file plan (see Table 3) is a comprehensive outline that includes the records category, category type, file organization, active file locations, retention schedule, and other specific instructions that provide guidance for effective management of records.

There is no “one-size-fits-all” file plan.  Rather, a file plan should reflect how work within your business is organized.  However, there are standard data that should be collected in your file plan, including:

· Category of the records
· Generator(s) of the records
· Folder hierarchy for records 
· Format of the records (include paper and electronic)
· Location of the records
· Records retention

REVISION AND MAINTENANCE OF FILE PLAN DOCUMENTS
File plans are subject to frequent revision.  File plans must be titled with the revision number and date of last revision if maintained as a spreadsheet.

It is at the discretion of each Records Coordinator as to whether or not each superseded version of a file structure and file plan must be retained as scheduled.  

At a minimum, Records Coordinators must review file plans annually, and update the documents as soon as possible when new records categories are identified, new records folders are added to records storage locations, files are moved into new or different folders, and/or when records retention schedule changes are made.

File plans should be stored in a location—preferably in a permanent network drive or SharePoint document library—where they can be accessed by all business unit employees. 


	23. 
	30
	3.4.2
	Q.	Question 34 states “Describe your product’s capabilities for generating compound documents, how compound contents are assembled, and which file types are supported.”
•	What does the State mean by “generating compound documents”? Please clarify.

A.	Generating compound documents is the ability for a system to pull together different types/formats of document and putting them together into a single document and format, such as PDF.

	24. 
	47
	4.0
	Q.	In the beginning of Section 4, the RFP states “Restate the subsection number and the text immediately prior to your written response.”
•	No other areas of the response states “restate the text immediately prior to your written response. Is this a requirement of the entire response or just section 4?

A.	See the answers to questions 11 and 12 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	25. 
	47
	4.1.1
	Q.	Can the State please confirm that the required four references are not to be submitted with the response, but will be asked of prospective vendors prior to contract award?

A.	See the answer to question 13 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	26. 
	51
	5.1.1
	Q.	In Section 5.1.1, the RFP states “Some of the TCO component costs will only be applicable to either an on premise or cloud solution, but not both. If your solution does not incur a cost for a spreadsheet cell, place “NA” in the cell.”
•	For solutions offering components that are part of an all-inclusive fee/cost, may vendors mark those cells for components included within a fee with the word “included” and only mark those cells that do not apply to their solution at all as “N/A” or should all cells that do not have a separate fee be marked as “N/A”?

A. “Included” may be used to mark cells where the components are all part of an all-inclusive fee.

	27. 
	N/A
	N/A
	Q.	General Question – Will the State permit prospective vendors to include an Executive Summary with their response?

A.	Yes, but the State is not required to read it and it may not have any effect on the scored criteria.

	28. 
	N/A
	N/A
	Q.	General Question – Will the State permit prospective vendors to include a Cover Letter with their response?

A.	Yes, but the State is not required to read it and it may not have any effect on the scored criteria.

	29. 
	20
	3.2.5.5
	Q.	What particular functionalities are envisioned for an integrated Wendia POB/ECM solution?

A.	 See the answer to question 132.

	30. 
	21
	3.2.5.11
	Q.	The provided links do not appear to contain information regarding integration details with ePass single signon. Is information available documenting API particulars and other characteristics?

A.	See the answer to question 14 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	31. 
	22
	3.3.2
	Q.	Is there a weight associated with having a local office? If so, what is that weight?

A.	See the answer to question 6 in Addendum 1 to this RFP. The point value of section 3.3.2 is stated in Section 5. No additional weighting is applied.

	32. 
	26
	3.4.2.1 #3
	Q.	In regard to “language”, is this programming language or foreign speaking/reading language?

A.	See the answer to question 31 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	33. 
	65
	Appendix B – Part 11 (On premise contract)
	Q.	Is it a firm (mandatory) requirement for the manufacturer to agree to a Source Code Escrow Agreement? Will it be a disqualification if manufacturer [MANUFACTURER NAME] will not agree to Source Code Escrow Agreement?

A.	See the answer to question 16 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	34. 
	108
	Appendix D – Ref #38
	Q.	Please provide clarity on the number of locations where the scanning activity will be carried out?

A.	Potentially every county office (56) and state bureau. Potentially, several thousand locations.

	35. 
	108
	Appendix D – Ref #38
	Q.	Please clarify on the number of documents, on an average, that will be scanned per day per location?

A.	Potentially several hundred or thousand. Provide your solution’s capacities in this area.

	36. 
	108
	Appendix D – Ref #91
	Q.	Please provide clarity on the volume of data that needs to be migrated from the existing system to the proposed system?

A.	See section 3.2.2 of the RFP. 

	37. 
	108
	Appendix D – Ref #91
	Q.	Please provide clarity on the format of the existing data that need to be migrated from the existing system to the proposed system?

A.	See section 3.2.2 of the RFP.

	38. 
	108
	Appendix D – Ref #144
	Q.	In addition to various ECM systems within the State Government (FileNet,Laserfiche, etc), which other non-ECM systems (ERP, HRIS, Payroll, etc) are in place within the Department and the Agencies. Please provide the no and name of the applications.

A.	See the answer to question 17 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	39. 
	24
	3.4
	Q.	Please provide the clarity about the no of concurrent users who will be accessing the proposed  ECM system.

A.	See the answer to question 18 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	40. 
	24
	3.4
	Q.	As per mentioned in the RFP document, The State of Montana currently uses or intends to use its ECM solution for the following types of processes and use cases:

1. Case Management
2. Claim Management
3. Permitting
4. Licensing
5. Handling FOIA Requests
6. Handling Discovery Requests
7. Grant Management
8. Student Loan Processing
9. Vendor Invoice Processing
10. Employee File Management
11. Managing Standards and Policies
12. Onboarding New Hires
13. Contract Management

	Please provide the clarity whether each of the above mentioned processes are the total no of workflows to be automated or these processes are having multiple sub processes which need to be automated as part of current project scope.

A.	See the answer to question 19 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	41. 
	N/A
	N/A
	Q.	Please provide a brief overview of your current IT infrastructure including hardware, system software, database licenses, operating system etc.

A.	See the answer to question 20 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	42. 
	N/A
	N/A
	Q.	Will the solution deployment be centralized or each Agency will host its own solution.

A.	The solution will be centralized, although the storage of the content may be distributed.

	43. 
	N/A
	N/A
	Q.	Request you to please provide clarity on the uptime of the proposed solution?

A.	24/7/365.

	44. 
	N/A
	N/A
	Q.	Is department looking for on-premise installation or Hosted offering. Please clarify.

A.	See the answer to question 21 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	45. 
	N/A
	N/A
	Q.	As per mentioned in the RFP document, the solution should have the capability for mutiple [sic] languages. So please clarify whether the solution is required in multiple languages as well including English. If Yes, please share the details.

A.	See the answer to question 31 in Addendum 1 to this RFP. .

	46. 
	N/A
	N/A
	Q.	Did the department see any ECM related product demos prior to release of the RFP? If so, what are the products you have reviewed?

A.	No.

	47. 
	N/A
	N/A
	Q.	Is there a preferred list of system integrators that the Department works with?

A.	No.

	48. 
	N/A
	N/A
	Q.	What is the total budget that has been allocated for the ECM Solution?

A.	We have no specific budget for this project at this time.    

	49. 
	16
	3.1.4
	Q.	Please provide the clarity about the timelines of the project completion.

A.	The State hopes to have the contract signed in January 2015, the pilot started in late January 2015 or early February 2015, with a pilot completion date roughly by the end of May 2015. Immediately following a successful pilot, we would like to begin converting or migrating the existing IBM FileNet environment.

	50. 
	34
	3.4.2.5 – question #17
	Q.	Please provide clarity whether setting up of DR site is part of current project scope.

A.	If the solution is not cloud based, the State will be responsible for setting up any disaster recovery sites. There is a question in the RTM requesting the vendor provide DR capabilities. These are desired functions within the system itself that could be of use to the State. Though marked as “Essential,” they are not mandatory. The State expects to receive help and recommendations from the contractor as to certain application-dependent specifications related to DR. If the solution is cloud based, the contractor will be expected to provide their own DR capabilities. Please describe.

	51. 
	42
	3.8
	Q.	How many users need to be trained as part of current project scope.

A.	System Administrators: 3
Advanced Users (pilot): 2-5
Basic Users (pilot): 30
Advanced Users (post-pilot): 24 (Trainer the trainers)
Basic Users (post-pilot): 24 (Trainer the trainers)

Offerors shall describe their recommended training strategies for these users, including whether instructor-led or CBT, or something else is recommended.

	52. 
	15
	3.1.4
	Q.	How many projects would be involved in scaling from an initial implementation of approximately 600 end-users to 2,000 users within 24 months?

A.	One per agency, per system using FileNet.

	53. 
	15
	3.1.4
	Q.	How many projects would be involved in scaling from an initial implementation of approximately 600 end-users to an enterprise-wide deployment across multiple agencies and more than 5,000 end-users?

A.	One per agency, per system using FileNet plus one per agency, per system using a non-FileNet solution.

	54. 
	16
	3.2.2.1
	Q.	In what programming language is the MWorks system written and upon what application platform is the MWorks system running?

A.	See the answer to question 6.

	55. 
	16
	3.2.2.1
	Q.	“Notes are entered by staff and stored in the database. These are assembled into documents as needed.” 

Into what type of documents are the noted assembled into? MSWord? PDF? TIFF?

A.	See the answer to question 6.

	56. 
	16
	3.2.2.1
	Q.	“Will require retention rules.” 

How many different retention policies would be expected for cases and/or case documents?

A.	See the answer to question 6.

	57. 
	16
	3.2.2.1
	Q.	“With each MWorks case having 200-300 documents with a large amount of confidential info: PII, Health, etc.” 

	Will documents containing confidential info have to be redacted or secured differently from other case documents?

A.	See the answer to question 6.

	58. 
	16
	3.2.2.1
	Q.	“All work will be done in Helena.” 

	Is all work required on site or can remote work be part of the ECM project? Is so do you have any off shore restrictions?

A.	See the answer to question 6 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	59. 
	17
	3.2.2.1
	Q.	“Would like to consider mobile access and the ability to upload files from phone into system.” 

	Is the pilot implementation to be internet accessible? Or is this phone access to be made available over secured VPN?

A.	Internet.

	60. 
	17
	3.2.2.2
	Q.	What core components/add-ons and versions of IBM FileNet are in the existing IBM FileNet Environment?

A.	Current FileNet environment:
· P8 Content Manager 4.5.1
· Process Engine 4.5.1
· Application Engine 4.0.2
· Image Services 4.1.2
· Content Collector 2.2
· Workplace XT 1.1.4
· Rendition Engine 2.4.0.24
· CFS-IS

	61. 
	17
	3.2.2.3
	Q.	Are all 17.4 million workflow objects active? Are we converting active and inactive workflows? How many process maps are involved in the 17.4 million objects?

A.	1.  Are all 17.4 million workflow objects active? No.
2.  Are we converting active and inactive workflows? Yes, both would be converted.  However, the 17+ million objects would be purged to retain, say, the most recent 2 years’ worth of data which would cut that count down significantly.  
3.  How many process maps are involved in the 17.4 million objects? 1 map (CDL file).

Also, see the answer to question 108.

	62. 
	21
	3.3.2
	Q.	“The offeror shall disclose any work performed at a location other than the primary project site. For any work performed at a location other than the primary project site in Helena, the offeror shall identify the specific location (city, state, country) and describe the type of work to be performed, the total hours for each type of work at that location, and the percent of the total hours for that type of work at that location.”

	Are there any on shore /off shore restrictions for any remote sites?

A.	See the answer to question 22 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	63. 
	22
	3.3.3
	Q.	“The state, at its sole discretion, reserves the right to reject the pilot as unsuccessful.” 

	If the co-produced Pilot Acceptance criterion is met, are we not guaranteed that the pilot was deemed successful?

A.	Yes.

	64. 
	30
	3.4.2.1
	Q.	“32.Does your product/proposed solution allow a file plan to be imported? Please describe”. 

	From what application/system would the file plan to be imported originate?

A.	File plans are most commonly generated in MS Word or Excel and would be imported from a local drive.

	65. 
	120
	Appendix D
	Q.	“The system shall interact with local storage locations and formats. Individual agencies shall be allowed to choose to have no content in the enterprise repository.”  

	Please clarify this requirement. Are you looking to manage content via a pointer but leave the original content in place?

A.	See the answer to question 23 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	66. 
	16
	3.2.2.1
	Q.	Please provide additional information regarding the MWorks application including database, functionality and additional details regarding integration desired.  

A.	See the answer to question 6.

	67. 
	16
	3.2.2.1
	Q.	Please provide any information available regarding Workflow of Pilot Project including flow charts, scope of work, details, etc.  

A.	See the answer to question 6.

	68. 
	21
	3.2.5.9
	Q.	Would an ECM solution with Electronic Forms be an option for replacing Oracle Forms?

A.	The State does not currently have concrete plans to replace its Oracle Forms applications. Suggestions and options are always welcome should that need arise.

	69. 
	21
	3.2.5.11
	Q.	Please provide additional information regarding the ePass Montana Single Login integration desired.  

A.	See the answers to questions 14 and 24 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	70. 
	22
	3.3.2
	Q.	Is it acceptable to have a location within driving range for the initial pilot project?  

A.	See the answers to questions 5 and 25 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	71. 
	64
	5.2
	Q.	Can payment milestones be negotiated and included in our response?

A.	See the answer to question 26 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	72. 
	69
	18.2
	Q.	Is this requirement negotiable regarding the Pilot license fees being reimbursed if Pilot is unsuccessful?

A.	No, this is not negotiable. 

	73. 
	51
	5.1.2
	Q.	How were the prices per user determined? Were these based on costs provided by a specific vendor?

A.	Cost per user was determined based on the State’s internal experience and a comparison of costs across other states.

	74. 
	51
	5.1.2
	Q.	Can you please provide more detail as to the functionality requirements for basic vs. advanced users?

A.	ECM industry vendors often segment their features and products into segments based on the technical complexity and the number of users who require the features.  Basic functions are often required by the majority of ECM users and a minority of users require the base functions plus additional advanced functions.  The State’s ECM users also fall into this pattern. The State desires a solution that is cost effective, and some ECM vendors license their products such that basic users are not forced to pay for advanced functions that they will never use. Offerors that have licensing models and pricing that accommodates this structure may score better in section 5.  Some Offerors will have only a single option for end user licensing and will need to propose a single, common license for both basic and advanced users. If you believe you have a licensing model that will meet the State’s needs but is different than what we have indicated, submit that model. 

	75. 
	51
	5.1.2
	Q.	Can you please confirm: All software costs, not just those of the user licenses, will be included in the calculation of the basic and advanced user license cost? Does this include all software modules such as retention policy, electronic forms, capture, etc?

A.	All software costs, not just user licenses, will be included in the costs for basic and advanced users.  

	76. 
	51
	5.1.2
	Q.	To confirm what was said on the pre-proposal conference/conference call, the State would like pricing for 1000 users in year one and 1000 users in year 2?

A.	The State would like pricing for 1000 users in year one and an additional 1000 users in year 2.

	77. 
	15
	3.2.2.1
	Q.	Is the State able to provide more detailed requirements for the Pilot Project? For example, number of users, required methods of capture, workflow processes, etc 

A.	See the answer to question 6.

	78. 
	15
	3.1.5
	Q.	Is the State able to provide metrics as to what constitutes a successful Pilot Project?

A.	The State and the contractor will jointly create the criteria of a successful pilot. The State believes it will be best to wait until closer to the pilot before creating those. They will naturally contain language about the system working as designed, performing acceptably, producing correct results, etc.

	79. 
	9
	1.7.5
	Q.	Section 1.7.5 states the electronic copies of the main proposal can be provided on a CD or a USB, the cost proposal requirements only state the use of USB for the electronic copies.  Is it acceptable to provide the electronic versions of the Cost Proposal on CD.  

A.	Yes.

	80. 
	21
	3.2.5.9
	Q.	Can you please explain desired integration with Oracle Forms and how these forms are used today, or will be used in the future?

A.	In general the Forms send key information to FileNet via a button or link and a list of content that match those keys (metadata) is returned to the user, who can then choose to view individual documents.

	81. 
	17
	3.2.2.2
	Q.	Will you please share the average number of pages per the 8 million documents and the number of index or metadata values?

A.	Total number of documents listed in the RFP was incorrect. The State currently has a total of 28 million. We have 17.5 million in Image Services and 10.5 million in P8. The 17.5 million Image Services documents that have 56.5 million pages which the average is around 4 pages per document.  More specifically minimum page count is 1 and  maximum page count is 970.

23 are the most indexes in one of our document classes.

	82. 
	26
	3.4.2.1, question #1
	Q.	Please explain what is meant by “record review cycles”. If possible, please provide a use case.

A.	Record review cycle are periodic points in the lifecycle of records when certain decisions need to be made about those records, such as their final disposition or status/retention of the individual files that may not be retained for the entire life of the record (e.g. drafts).

	83. 
	16
	3.2.2.1
	Q.	Regarding the Pilot project, will the MWorks system manage process/workflow?  There are no workflow requirements outlined, so should offerors assume that there is no workflow requirement?  

A.	No, do not assume there is no workflow. The State does not yet know exactly what sort of workflow will be requested for MWorks, but certainly several will be wanted. Also, see the answer to question 6. 

	84. 
	16
	3.2.2.1
	Q.	Please describe the architecture of the MWorks System (e.g. .Net, Java, Mainframe, etc.)

A.	See the answer to question 6.

	85. 
	16
	3.2.2.1
	Q.	What interface or access to MWorks data is available (e.g. API, ODBC, etc.)

A.	All the MWorks data is stored in an Oracle database. All usual methods of accessing an Oracle database are available, native driver, ODBC, JDBC, etc. It has no other already-existing APIs. Also, see the answer to question 6.

	86. 
	22
	3.3.2
	Q.	Please clarify or confirm the Helena site requirement.  Specifically, can offeror’s work in Helena from a temporary location during the Pilot phase and then determine a more permanent solution if the enterprise deployment is approved?  

A.	Your suggested arrangement is acceptable. Also see the answer to question 6 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	87. 
	27
	3.4.2.1, #10
	Q.	Could the State please elaborate on the request: “Describe your solution’s renditioning capabilities”.  

A.	Refer to the RFP glossary for a definition of renditioning.

	88. 
	n/a
	n/a
	Q.	What does the State pay annually for FileNet maintenance currently?  

A.	The State pays $429,181 annually for FileNet maintenance.  

	89. 
	n/a
	n/a
	Q.	How many FTE’s are currently dedicated to FileNet?  

A.	3-4 Full Time Equivalent (FTE).

	90. 
	34
	3.4.2.5  #3
	Q.	There is reference to other local entities for inclusion in the enterprise count.  Are those users included in the numbers listed in 5.2?  Or in addition to those listed in 5.2?  Should offeror’s assume anything in the cost proposal?  

A.	Local entities are not included in the enterprise count of users. Local entity users are not included in any user counts within the RFP and offerors should not assume any local users are part of the cost proposal.      

	91. 
	34
	3.4.2.5  #3
	Q.	Who provides the infrastructure and support for additional local government entities?

A.	For an on-premise solution, the State would provide these.  The State will provide infrastructure and support for local government entities.

	92. 
	n/a
	n/a
	Q.	What are the FTE resources available for knowledge transfer and on-the-job training during the pilot phase?  

A.	3-4 FTE.

	93. 
	n/a
	n/a
	Q.	Will the agency invest in instructor led classroom training prior to accepting the pilot phase?

A.	The State is not completely sure what is meant by this question. The State can commit to providing a room for instruction, computers, desks, table, and projectors. In short, the infrastructure required for instructor-led training will be provided by the State. The contractor shall supply the instructor and all training materials.

	94. 
	n/a
	n/a
	Q.	Describe the connectivity between the local offices for the Pilot Project and the Data Center.

A.	The local Havre office is connected to the State’s 2.5 gigabit core with a 1.5mb circuit.  The local Missoula office is connected to the State’s 2.5 gigabit core with a 100mb circuit.  The local Helena office is connected to the State’s 1.5 gigabit core with a 12 gigabit dark fiber circuit.

	95. 
	n/a
	n/a
	Q.	What are the State’s plans over the next two years from a Microsoft version consolidation standpoint; e.g. standardizing on one version of Exchange, Office, and Sharepoint?

A.	The State is currently running Exchange 2010 and SharePoint 2010.  Exchange 2013 is in test right now and will be deployed to production by the end of the year.  The State is testing SharePoint 2013 but does not have a target date set for migration to 2013.  Most desktops are using Office 2010 and they will be upgraded to 2013 in the next 16 to 18 months.

	96. 
	n/a
	n/a
	Q.	Is the email system centralized for the state or distributed per agency?

A.	The Exchange email system is centralized and managed by SITSD.

	97. 
	21
	3.2.5.11
	Q.	Can the State elaborate on the security model for ePass? e.g does each portal account (external user) tie into Active Directory or is it proprietary credentialing system?

A.	See the answer to question 14 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	98. 
	21
	3.2.5.11
	Q.	Does the state have any specific requirements for the ePass integration?

A.	See the answer to question 14 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	99. 
	n/a
	n/a
	Q.	Upon final acceptance of the pilot, is the state expecting a defined warranty period?

A.	The State expects to move into the upgrade to or migration from the existing FileNet solution upon completion of the pilot. The offeror is encouraged to recommend a warranty period/arrangement after pilot, since the pilot project will be moved into the production environment at that time.

	100. 
	n/a
	n/a
	Q.	What ROI has been mandated (if any) for the enterprise EMC? Is there a specific duration expectation for ROI and if so what are the key factors?

A.	No ROI has been mandated for the enterprise ECM.

	101. 
	24
	3.3.8
	Q.	What firms does the State have experience with for similar IV&V? What overhead does it introduce?  What delays have been encountered?   Offerors will need to be sure to factor this additional reporting and onboarding into their project plans and work estimates.

A.	The State has experience with many IV&V vendors. It is the goal of both the State and its IV&V contractors to minimize the impact the IV&V staff have on the execution of the project, whether those staff are internal or external. The IV&V contractor, if any, will use the deliverables of the ECM contractor already being delivered, along with observation and meeting attendance to produce their own IV&V reports. The State will be responsible for on-boarding any IV&V staff. Any normal costs for IV&V will be borne by the State and do not need to be accounted for in the TCO spreadsheet.

	102. 
	n/a
	n/a
	Q.	Is the Department of Transportation one of the interested agencies?  Have they committed funds?  

A.	All agencies are interested; however, no agency outside of DOA has committed funds.

	103. 
	14
	3.1.3
	Q.	Are there any known issues with the current FileNet P8 environment?

A.	From a technical perspective, no.

	104. 
	15
	3.2.1
	Q.	How much control do you want with the system in terms of day-to-day maintenance? Or rather how much customization do you have today? This will help us determine what the expectation is from an off-premise cloud solution.

A.	See the definition of “configurable” as found in this RFP’s glossary. The State’s objective is a system that is highly configurable to enable it to satisfy a wide variety of agency requirements. Should the chosen solution be cloud-based, the state also desires a solution with a minimum amount of customization and day-to-day maintenance.

	105. 
	22
	3.3.2
	Q.	Is it mandatory to have Helena as the Primary Project site for remote hardware configuration, possible local hardware installation and configuration, software installation and configuration, and testing? Typically, pilot projects can be performed in our lab and we would provide access to your end users for testing. Consultants would travel onsite to meet with the users every once in a while and all they would need is a place to sit and internet connection when onsite. All work can otherwise be performed remotely.

A.	See the answer to question 6 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	106. 
	17
	3.2.2.2
	Q.	How much of the 8 million docs are in P8 v/s Image Services?

A.	See the answer to question 81.

	107. 
	17
	3.2.2.3
	Q.	Please list all Filenet components / products and Versions currently deployed at the State of Montana.

A.	See the answer to question 60.

	108. 
	17
	3.2.2.3
	Q.	Please clarify migration of 17.4M workflow objects.
1.	How many workflows templates are currently in use?
2.	Can the workflows be stopped / completed in the Filenet environment at time of migration and restarted in the new ECM environment? For clarification, this means that every workflow will have to be completed in Filenet.
3.	Is the legacy information / audit trail for workflows relevant and needs to be captured for future reporting?

A. 	State answer:
1. The applications still using Image Services for workflow do not currently have any workflow  templates.
2. We do not know the answer to this question at this time. Please present in your response how you would recommend doing this.
3. Any workflow objects in the retention queue are for historical purposes only, and are not active.  DLI uses this for statistics, but it can be purged periodically (retaining the most recent 2 years or so, as stated in answer for question 61).  It has not been purged in many years.

	109. 
	17
	3.2.2.3
	Q.	Please detail the object model currently in use, including attributes for each object type.

A.	Please contact IBM for an object model of the P8 and Image Services software.

	110. 
	57
	6.4
	Q.	"Lowest Responsive Offer Total Cost" affects award points to all responders. That said, what does the state provide to ensure that non-enterprise solutions don't skew the points system.

A.	Please see the answer to question 29 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	111. 
	51
	5.1.2
	Q.	Mandatory pass / fail criteria uses the "sum of all vendor and state costs" in the equations for both basic and advanced user. Question: what are the state’s costs used in these equations?

A.	The State’s costs are a function of the offeror’s infrastructure requirements (servers, storage, memory, etc.) that are the state’s responsibilities, and existing state rates for providing that infrastructure.  Infrastructure costs that are the state’s responsibilities are defined by the offeror in section 3.  State rates can be found at http://sitsdservicecatalog.mt.gov/content/documents/Rates/RateSheet.          

	112. 
	Question 306
	Appendix D
	Q.	How many documents and/or pages are captured/scanned/classified that feed each DM solution?  How are these documents received (e.g. email, fax, mail, etc...)?

A.	Captured content comes from many sources. Mail, e-mail, fax, electronic media, attachments to e-mail, upload over the web, all are used in various places within the State. For the purpose of this RFP, MWorks is anticipated to feed 500 documents into the system weekly, while the upgraded or migrated FileNet legacy system will supply the amount of content found in the answer to question 153.

	113. 
	14-15
	3.1.3
	Q.	What are your home grown solutions based on?  What standard API protocols do they support for access and retrieval that could aid in a migration effort?

A.	See the answer to question 1 in Addendum 1 to this RFP. The home grown solutions are all different. The conversion of any home grown systems is out of scope for this project. We do want to know what your approach would be converting such systems, and that would include taking steps to determine what they are “based on,” and what standard API protocols they support.

	114. 
	21
	3.2.5.11
	Q.	What technology/solution is your ePass SSO based on?

A.	See the answer to question 14 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	115. 
	51
	5.1.2
	Q.	What is user cost based on?   Does it reflect FTE, support, hardware, and data migration cost or a subset of these?  If a subset, which costs are included in the user cost base?

A.	User costs are based on all the costs listed in the TCO spreadsheet except for those costs associated with, and listed in the Conversion Costs worksheet. The State’s intent is to calculate user costs by excluding all conversion costs.    

	116. 
	49
	4.3
	Q.	Can you please provide a tentative schedule breakdown (i.e. discussed during conference) for the Oral Presentation section including when you plan on having the use case Demo Scripts available?

A.	At this time, our plan is to invite the three top scoring offerors to give an oral presentation and demonstration of their solution at a location in Helena, Montana. These demonstrations are planned for the week of December 1, 2014. Each invited offeror will have six hours to conduct their demonstration, from 9:00 AM to 4:00 PM with an hour break for lunch. Lunch will not be provided by the State. The State is gathering use cases now and plans to have those available by the time the RFP responses are due, September 10, 2014.

	117. 
	50-51
	5.1
	Q.	What level of services or level of effort are you looking for:  installation, migration efforts, application development/support, infrastructure support, general staff augmentation (please provide functional areas), etc...?  Which of these services costs should be included in the TCO analysis?

A.	The TCO spreadsheet is designed to capture all the service costs (installation, migration, application development,/support, infrastructure support, etc.) necessary to implement the offeror’s proposal. The level of effort proposed by an offeror is their decision alone. The State will not accept responsibility for costs which are not disclosed in the TCO workbook.     

	118. 
	50-51
	5.1
	Q.	In the TCO scenario spreadsheet you reference a second system for data migration in year 1 & 2. Can you please provide the system specifics (e.g. size, number of objects, number of workflows, etc...) we should consider?

A.	The TCO-Sample worksheet  lists year 2 costs for  20 servers (12 +2 + 8) installed in year one.  State rates for equipment and infrastructure are annual rates, not one-time costs. This is an artificial example designed to show how to use the worksheet with state rates, not an actual example of what the state anticipates it will need to support additional users in year 2.    

	119. 
	50-51
	5.1
	Q.	Does the State have Storage and Compute hardware ready to implement an ‘On Premise’ solution?

A.	Yes, depending on the magnitude of the equipment requirement.  The State is prepared to acquire all hardware resources necessary to implement an on-premise solution. The offeror’s solution will be evaluated on the costs the state incurs to provide existing and future hardware.     

	120. 
	10
	Section 2:  RFP Standard Information
Paragraph 2.3.1
	Q.	Does Montana view the exception for “trade secrets” as comparable to Exemption 4 under the federal Freedom of Information Act, relating to “trade secrets and commercial or financial information obtained from a person and privileged or confidential?” See 5 U.S.C. Section 552(b)(4).

A.	No.

	121. 
	10
	Section 2:  RFP Standard Information
Paragraph 2.3.2
	Q.	Can the affidavit regarding the claim of trade secrets come from a corporate officer?

A.	No.

	122. 
	15
	3.1.4
	Q.	Are there expectations about how many servers will be needed or available for the initial and fully expanded user levels? Does the state have existing hardware or is it planned to buy new hardware?

A.	The State has no expectations on the numbers of servers that will be required. The amount of existing hardware is irrelevant for calculating the TCO for the offeror’s proposal. The State’s costs for providing infrastructure hardware are based on the State’s rates found at http://sitsdservicecatalog.mt.gov/content/documents/Rates/RateSheet.

	123. 
	15
	3.1.4
	Q.	If the state is purchasing new hardware, is a gradual purchase planned? Will the state be responsible for patching, administering and managing on premise hardware?

A.	The purchase date of new hardware is irrelevant for this RFP.  The State’s costs for providing infrastructure hardware are based on the State’s rates found at http://sitsdservicecatalog.mt.gov/content/documents/Rates/RateSheet, not on the availability of any existing hardware.  The offeror’s proposal will determine which party is responsible for patching, administering and managing on premise hardware.  

	124. 
	15
	3.1.4 
	Q.	If the state is not purchasing new hardware, please provide an inventory of the current hardware infrastructure which might be used for this effort?

A.	With a vendor hosted solution, the State may not purchase any hardware.  If the State is required to provide hardware with an on-premise proposal, the offeror will determine and list the hardware requirements in section 3. The cost for state supplied infrastructure will be state rates found at     http://sitsdservicecatalog.mt.gov/content/documents/Rates/RateSheet. State costs for providing hardware are not related to the hardware on hand or the cost of acquiring new hardware.

	125. 
	15
	3.1.4
	Q.	For the on premise solution in Montana, will the servers be collocated or spread across Montana? What is the infrastructure topography?

A.	The State assumes the default server configuration will have all servers collocated at the state’s Helena data center unless the offeror’s proposed solution requires a distributed solution.  

	126. 
	15
	3.1.4
	Q.	What is the current network connectivity between departments/offices and server location?  Please provide a line speed rating for this connection.

A.	 Please see the answer to question 94.

	127. 
	15
	3.1.4
	Q.	Does the network connection degrade during peak operation? If so, how much?

A.	The core and aggregate connections are continually monitored to ensure they adequately sized to meet the current network demands.  If there is any degradation, it occurs in the local loop or last mile connections.  There are some 300 local loops in our network and it would be impossible to identify or quantify network connection degradation on each of those loops. 

	128. 
	16
	3.2.2.1
	Q.	What is the size of the Mworks documents which need to be converted and how many pages will need to be converted?

A.	See the answer to question 6.

	129. 
	16
	3.2.2.1
	Q.	What format are the Mworks documents currently stored?

A.	See the answer to question 6.

	130. 
	20
	3.2.5.3 
	Q.	(SharePoint) - What is the state’s desired functionality for integration? Please provide a business case for this requirement.

A.	SharePoint was listed as an application the State wishes to know how well, if at all, your product integrates with it “out of the box.” Actual integration with existing SharePoint applications is not a part of this project, even if your solution proposes using SharePoint. Such integration, if any, will take place in later projects. The requested information will help the State know how well and how easily your solution will integrate.

	131. 
	20
	3.2.5.4 
	Q.	(PeopleSoft) – What is the state’s desired functionality for integration? Please provide a business case for this requirement.

A.	PeopleSoft was listed as an application the State wishes to know how well, if at all, your product integrates with it “out of the box.” Actual integration with existing PeopleSoft applications is not a part of this project, even if your solution proposes using PeopleSoft. Such integration, if any, will take place in later projects. The requested information will help the State know how well and how easily your solution will integrate.

	132. 
	20
	3.2.5.5 
	Q.	(Wendia) - What is the state’s desired functionality for integration? Please provide a business case for this requirement.

A.	Wendia was listed as an application the State wishes to know how well, if at all, your product integrates with it “out of the box.” Actual integration with existing Wendia applications is not a part of this project, even if your solution proposes using Wendia. Such integration, if any, will take place in later projects. The requested information will help the State know how well and how easily your solution will integrate.

	133. 
	21
	3.2.5.9
	Q.	If an ECM has its own Forms module, does the state still want integration with Oracle forms and, if so, what functionality does the state expect? If the state is only seeking functionality, the ECM  may be able to fully satisfy these requirements.

A.	The State encourages offerors to propose alternative and innovative ways in which their solutions can be used. Although the State has no firm plans to replace Oracle Forms and Reports with other products, that topic does come up occasionally and we are very interested in knowing what our options are.

	134. 
	24
	3.
	Q.	For FOIA requests, does the state plan to open access to the public, export PDFs and email them, or handle it in some other fashion?

A.	Although different agencies may handle these in different ways, it can be stated that there is no intent at this time to open access to the ECM solution to the public for FOIA requests. It is likely the material will be extracted from the ECM system and provided to the requestor in some other fashion, one example of which might be PDFs on electronic media.


	135. 
	26
	3.4.2.1 #2 
	Q.	Please provide example personalization rules and how the state anticipates them being used for individual fields.

A.	Personalization at this level will often be for security or confidentiality reasons.

	136. 
	26
	3.4.2.1 #3 
	Q.	What language support is needed? Does this pertain to documents with content in multiple languages, indexing metadata in multiple languages, or the content in the ECM being in multiple languages?

A.	See the answer to question 31 in Addendum 1 of this RFP.

	137. 
	28
	3.4.2.1 #12 
	Q.	Please provide additional detail for this requirement. What type of content delivery does the state want created and provide a usage example?

A.	The State has forms for which we would like to create templates, both for internal (agency) and external (public) use. Also document templates, such as permitting documents. Instead of reinventing the format over and over again, we would like to reuse templates. Delivery simply means making them available for use.

	138. 
	28
	3.4.2.1 #13
	Q.	Does this apply to automated routing or manually initiated routing? Please provide an example of what the state’s routing expectations.

A.	Both. This would include files including PDFs, Word, Excel, online forms, etc. that need to be integrated into the workflow. Forms submitted online would need to have automated routing within the workflow. However, there would also likely be manual routing.

	139. 
	28
	3.4.2.1 #15
	Q.	What would the goal of this integration be? Please provide a business case and/or examples of how it would work.

A.	What is desired is the ability for the State to use tools such as Dreamweaver to allow staff to create and/or modify the user interface.

	140. 
	30
	3.4.2.1 #33
	Q.	What business cases does the state have for linking content?

A.	Reduce duplication, reduce storage requirements, and avoid outdated duplication.

	141. 
	36
	3.5.1
	Q.	Please specifically define "high availability"

A.	The State’s virtual server environment, as described in Section 3.5.1 is engineered for high availability.  Virtual servers that host applications are run on several physical servers.  If a physical server goes down, the virtual servers hosting the application automatically roll to another available physical server.  The proposed solution must be able to be hosted on virtualized servers using VMware Vsphere as the hypervisor.

	142. 
	37
	3.5.2
	Q.	What types of NIST and FISMA requirements are needed? For example, is the requirement for FISMA high or FISMA moderate?

A.	See section 3.6 for more information about security requirements.  Specifically, See section 3.6.2.8.

	143. 
	87
	Appendix B:  Cloud Hosted Contract paragraph 5.2
	Q.	Does the state have a set of instructions for invoices, such that contractors that follow the instructions can have reasonable confidence that the state will view the contractor’s invoices as “complete and accurate”?

A.	No. The State does not have instructions for invoices. Contractor must follow the requirements set out in the contract. If an issue arises with the invoice, it will be addressed by both parties to a mutually agreeable solution. 

	144. 
	90
	Appendix B:  Cloud Hosted Contract, 
Section 9, paragraph 9.1
	Q.	Requested Revision: Insert “negligent, grossly negligent, willful, wanton, or reckless” or “culpable” after “in connection with any” in the second line of 9.1.

	Justification: 	Contractors should not be held liable (as under a strict liability regimen) for acts which are not fault-worthy.

A.	The State does not accept this insertion. 

	145. 
	90
	Appendix B:  Cloud Hosted Contract, 
Section 9, paragraph 9.1
	Q.	Requested revision: To insert a provision comparable to the contractor’s indemnity obligations for malware/harmful code or for IP infringement inherent in the state data.

	Justification:	Because the state will be providing data to the contractor, the state should indemnify the contractor if the state data – which the contractor must accept – contains malware or harmful code that damages the contractor’s systems or infringes some third party’s IP.

A.	The State will not insert such a provision.

	146. 
	90
	Appendix B:  Cloud Hosted Contract, 
Section 10
	Q.	Requested revision:	Delete “for each claim that the state makes against the provider” at the end of the first sentence of Section 10.

	Justification:	Typically, limitation of liability provisions relate to the contractor’s entire aggregate liability and not just for one claim.

A.	The State does not accept this deletion. 

	147. 
	91
	Appendix B:  Cloud Hosted Contract, 
Section 11, paragraph 11.1.2
	Q.	Requested revision:	 Change “make a payment required” to “pay the undisputed portion of an invoice” in the first line of Section 11.1.2.

	Justification:	Even if a portion of an invoice is problematic, it could create hardship for contractors if the state withholds a large sum because of disagreement over a trivial portion.

A.	The State is willing to negotiate this change during the contract refinement process.	

	148. 
	91
	Appendix B:  Cloud Hosted Contract, 
Section 11, paragraph 11.2
	Q.	Requested revision: Change “default is cured by the defaulting party” to “the defaulting party cures the default or makes reasonable progress toward cure” at the end of the section.

	Justification:	It may be unusual but some cures may take longer than 30 days.

A.	The State is willing to negotiate this change during the contract refinement process.

	149. 
	92
	Appendix B:  Cloud Hosted Contract, 
Section 12, paragraph 12.5
	Q.	Requested revision: Add “, or if no agreement rate applies, at the provider’s current rates for services of that sort, or at a rate agreed upon between the parties” at the end of the next-to-last sentence of the section.

	Justification:	Recognizes the possibility that some transition activities may not fall neatly within an existing rate

A.	The State rejects this addition.

	150. 
	94
	Appendix B:  Cloud Hosted Contract, 
Section 14, paragraph 14.4
	Q.	Requested revision:	 Add “Alternatively, provider shall comply with the applicable worker’s compensation statutes in the dtate [sic] in which the provider is performing work, if outside Montana.”

	Justification:	Contractors will already be subject to applicable worker’s compensation statutes for work outside Montana, and Montana’s statutes will not apply to such work.

A.	The State accepts this revision.

	151. 
	93
	Appendix B:  Cloud Hosted Contract, 
Section 14, paragraph 14.8
	Q.	Request: Would the state limit this section to key personnel?

	Justification:	Requiring state review and approval of any and all personnel is unduly burdensome for both parties; the state can achieve an appropriate level of management by limiting this section and similar sections to “key” personnel

A.	The State is willing to negotiate this change during the contract refinement process.	

	152. 
	N/A
	Missing Information
	Q.	What is the expected number of concurrent users when the ECM application is fully implemented?

A.	See the answer to question 18 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	153. 
	N/A
	Missing Information
	Q.	What is the average number of documents added the ECM application daily or weekly?

A.	The State adds from 200,000 to 500,000 documents per month.

	154. 
	N/A
	Missing Information
	Q.	What is the average number of pages per document added to the ECM application?

A.	See the answer to question 81.

	155. 
	RTM
	Row 77
	Q.	What are the specific social media sources?

A.	See the answer to question 32 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	156. 
	RTM
	Row 77
	Q.	Does the state expect the ECM to harvest social media or will another tool be used to feed the ECM content?

A.	See the answer to question 32 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	157. 
	RTM
	Row 78
	Q.	Does the state expect the ECM to harvest data from a website or will another tool be used to feed the ECM website data/documents?

A.	See the answer to question 32 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	158. 
	RTM
	Row 78
	Q.	What websites does the state anticipate harvesting data from?

A.	See the answer to question 32 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	159. 
	RTM
	Row 128
	Q.	How is this anticipated to work? If versions moved the location of data to be redacted, are there expectations of finding the right data automatically? What is the business case?

A.	The solution should be capable of continuing and preserving the redaction of data even if its location within the content changes as a result of further editing. There is no expectation of being able to automatically redact data in previous version of an unredacted document.

	160. 
	RTM
	Row 149
	Q.	What is the business case driving this?

A.	Example: Some home grown systems have workflows built into them. If a workflow is executing in the ECM, the State would like the ability to link to workflows in the home grown system and vice versa.

	161. 
	RTM
	Row 150
	Q.	What is meant by "parallel relationship?"

A.	A parallel relationship is one in which two or more systems communicate and coordinate their work to produce what could be considered a single, logical result unit of work.

	162. 
	RTM
	Row 152
	Q.	Please identify the state systems vendors need to interface with and provide high level interface requirements. What interfaces do those systems have? What features are desired in the integrations?

A.	Because of the large number of complex and varied systems within the State, we would like the offerors to provide a detailed overview of your solution’s capabilities with respect to integrating with both COTS and custom-built applications. Also list COTS product your solution currently interfaces with.

	163. 
	RTM
	Row 155
	Q.	What is the business case driving this? Is it the same as row 149?

A.	Yes

	164. 
	RTM
	Row 156
	Q.	Please identify the state systems vendors need to interface with and provide high level interface requirements. What interfaces do those systems have? What features are desired in the integrations?

A.	See the answer to question 162.

	165. 
	RTM
	Row 261
	Q.	Which IRS confidentiality requirements are you referring to?

A.	Publication 1075. Tax information Security Guidelines for Federal, State and Local Agencies. Safeguarding of Federal Tax Information (FTI) and Personal Identifiable Information (PII).

	166. 
	RTM
	Row 263
	Q.	Does this refer to data in documents or data in the database?

A.	Both. Describe what your solution provides.

	167. 
	RTM
	Row 286
	Q.	What are the state’s procedures for login and password creation?

A.	See https://montana.policytech.com/dotNet/documents/?docid=396&mode=view.

	168. 
	RTM
	Row 287
	Q.	What part(s) of the system needs to be configurable at the agency level? Do Graphical User Interface (GUI), Features available, Business processes need to be configurable?  Please define the area which needs to have specific configuration.  An example would be very helpful here.

A.	The goal of having a highly configurable system is to allow the savvy business users (sometimes known as super users) to make important modifications to the system without requiring the intervention of a programmer. The more control a super user has over the way a system looks and functions, the less they must depend on the IT department and its busy staff.

Within the context of an ECM system, desired configuration capabilities might include the ability to fully create, modify, and deploy a workflow. Another might be the ability to fully create, modify, and deploy a retention schedule or file plan. Another one that is not specific to an ECM system is the ability for a security officer (not an IT person) to add or remove system rights for users, or initiate an audit trail report.

The State is interested in the offeror describing the capabilities of their solution in this area, with more points being awarded to those solutions that show the greatest amount of user-controlled configuration.

	169. 
	RTM
	Row 288
	Q.	What is an example of a pre-defined event trigger?  

A.	An example might include a retention period. When certain points in the retention plan are reached, the event triggers fires and performs some logic.

	170. 
	RTM
	Row 289
	Q.	What is an example of a user-defined event trigger?

A.	An example might include a date, the arrival of which triggers the execution of some rule or workflow.

	171. 
	RTM
	Row 304
	Q.	What is meant by libraries? Please provide an example or examples of a library and how it is defined in this context.

A.	A “library” is analogous to a dedicated network storage drive. See http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Digital_library and http://home.wlu.edu/~whaleyt/classes/DigiLib/Whaley/Definition.html for complete definitions.  For purposes of this RFP, a digital or electronic library is a place where electronic content is stored for a particular organization. The library is managed, maintained, and functions according to that organization’s requirements.

	172. 
	26 (3)
	3.4.2.1
	Q.	What does multi language content mean i.e. content translation or Application internationalization?

A.	See the answer to question 31 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	173. 
	27 (10)
	3.4.2.1
	Q.	Which type of one format to other format renditions is required?

A.	Describe what your solution provides. The State does not have a list of these already defined.

	174. 
	28 (12)
	3.4.2.1
	Q.	Does authoring and delivering templates mean content templates?

A.	Content, forms, search, data entry. What does your solution provide?

	175. 
	36 (14)
	3.4.2.5
	Q.	Which Portals are being used currently in the existing system?

A.	No COTS portals are currently being used. The only portals being used by the State are those that have been custom built or came as part of a system acquired primarily for another purpose, such as the STAARS system, which was acquired to perform the administration of Unemployment Insurance tax. This system has a public-facing web component that could be viewed as a “portal” by some, depending on your definition of “portal.”

	176. 
	14
	3.1.3
	Q.	Can we suggest ECM products other than in the RFP list?

A.	See the answer to question 37 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	177. 
	14
	3.1.2
	Q.	What would be main business drivers for this initiative?

A.	See the answer to question 380.

	178. 
	14
	3.1.1
	Q.	Where are all the agencies located, within US or outside US?

A.	See the answer to question 38 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	179. 
	14
	3.1.1
	Q.	Will the same content be accessed/ modified by different agencies?

A.	See the answer to question 39 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	180. 
	14
	3.1.1
	Q.	Will the new environment be high end available?

A.	Yes. See the answer to question 141 for more information.

	181. 
	14
	3.1.1
	Q.	Please provide the list of various environments supported for each application/module in scope.

A.	The applications currently using FileNet are:

1. MWorks (pilot) – See the answer to question 6.
2. CPP Candidate & Committee
3. DEQ Coal Mining
4. DEQ Opencut
5. DLI ERD HR
6. DLI ERD ICCR
7. DLI ERD UEF
8. DLI BSD Compliance and Professional and Occupational Licensing
9. DLI MISTICS
10. DNRC Water Rights
11. DOA SITSD ACF2 Requests
12. DOA RMTD Claims
13. DOC BOH Admin
14. DOC BOH Multi-Family
15. DOC BOH Single Family
16. DOC BOI Investment Files
17. DOC Contracts
18. DOC Servicing (BOH)
19. DOJ Motor Vehicle Title Info
20. DOJ SVOR
21. DPHHS Acute Services
22. DPHHS Big Sky/Rx
23. DPHHS CHIP/HMK
24. DPHHS Quality Assurance
25. HIS CRABS
26. HIS SHPO
27. JUD Supreme Court Docket
28. JUD Water Rights
29. JUD Water Courts
30. MSU Registrar’s Office
31. OPI Legal
32. OPI Teaching Certifications
33. SOS BSSI

All applications currently using FileNet (except for one) had their interfaces developed in Java, use the FileNet Java API and require the FileNet Application Engine. All of this is running on JBoss and fronted by a reverse proxy server, currently MS-ISA but soon the Netscaler.

The one application that is not, MISTICS at DLI, is still using Image Services. It’s an Oracle Forms and Reports system, running on an Oracle database. The interface is a Visual Basic app that uses Visual Workflow API Service calls. They use an injector app that looks for returned or error documents and distributes workflow into about 40 queues. On the client side, it uses Performer where users complete and route workflow. Also, additional information about the workflows used in MISTICS can be found in the documents released with this addendum.

	182. 
	44
	3.9.1
	Q.	Does the licensing cost borne by SITSD? [Clarification: We wanted to get clarification on whether the state is paying for the licensing of software components?]

A.	Offerors are responsible for identifying which software licensing that will be supplied and paid for by the state, and which software licensing that will be supplied and paid for by the offeror.  

	183. 
	45
	3.10.1
	Q.	Will technical support start immediately after production release?

A.	Yes.

	184. 
	45
	3.10.1
	Q.	Do we need to provide a dedicated technical team?

A.	See the answer to question 40 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	185. 
	45
	3.10.1
	Q.	Do we need to provide a dedicated Help desk for Technical support?

A.	See the answer to question 41 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	186. 
	45
	3.10.1
	Q.	How big is the technical support team?

A.	3-4 FTE.

	187. 
	45
	3.10.1
	Q.	Can we suggest any ticketing tool?

A.	No. A new ticking tool is out of scope. Consideration might be given if the tool were supplied at no cost to the State, although the State has not obligation to accept that tool. Please describe this fully in your proposal. The state’s current ticketing tool is Wendia’s POB.   

	188. 
	14
	3.1.1
	Q.	It is mentioned that multiple ERM/ECM systems are used. Can you please provide the details of the various systems and their versions?

A.	See the answer to question 1 in Addendum 1.

	189. 
	15
	3.1.4
	Q.	It is mentioned that the user base will be more than 5000 end users. Can it be assumed that the user base for next five years will not exceed 6000 users? Is information available on the number of concurrent users?

A.	For purposes of cost, infrastructure, and staffing estimation, proposers may assume the user count will not exceed 5000.  Estimation of concurrent users is an offeror’s responsibility.   

	190. 
	15
	3.2.1
	Q.	A detailed end user license metric is requested. Besides the Client Access License (CAL) type and a description are any other details required in this section?

A.	The State is interested in the type (basic, advanced, concurrent, public, etc. as applicable) and a description of the functionality included in each type.

	191. 
	15,16
	3.2.2
	Q.	It is mentioned that new ECM solution may require transition from the State’s current system and environment (or a version upgrade), and new “from-scratch” implementations.
1.	Can you please elaborate on the number of applications in the current system and provide a breakup of out-of-the-box applications and custom applications or a high level scope. Also can you share available details on the current capacity and growth expected?
2.	How many ‘from-scratch’ implementations are expected? What will be the approximate range of timeframe for these implementations?

A.	State answer:
1. See the answer to question 181.
2. Only one from-scratch implementation is within the scope of this project. The one implementation is the Pilot project.

	192. 
	16
	3.2.2.1
	Q.	Can you please clarify the expectation of “From Scratch” Pilot implementation:

To build a new “Mworks” system with sample migration and listed features?
or 
To integrate the content management system with it demonstrating the listed features?

A.	“To integrate the content management system with it demonstrating the listed features?” Also, See the answer to question 6.

	193. 
	20
	3.2.2.5
	Q.	Can you please elaborate on what are the objectives to be met by integration of the ECM solution with Wendia POB?

A.	See the answer to question 132.

	194. 
	38
	3.5.2.2
	Q.	In the current system is there a Disaster-Recovery setup in place? If yes, provide the architecture of the same

[bookmark: _MailEndCompose]A.	For Disaster Recovery purposes, the State stores a copy of the Virtual Servers that host applications on a SAN located at the State’s DR site.  The application’s data is replicated throughout the day with a full replication that occurs during off hours to a SAN at the same DR site.  When a production environment is down in our primary data center, the DR infrastructure that hosts the application becomes available to bring the application back online.

	195. 
	108
	Appendix D
	Q.	Requirements Tab of the excel sheet [Appendix-D_Requirements-Traceability-Matrix], please answer the below:
1.	Row 7, Ref #2 mentions cataloging activities can you please provide an example. 
2.	Row 18, Ref #13, please elaborate / explain “The system shall provide for content is identified as “privileged information” by owner”.

A.	#2:   Cataloging simply means indexing.
#13: The system should have functionality that not only identifies content as being privileged based on its association with a specific record type, but individual records (content) should have the ability to be identified by the end-user as privileged.

	196. 
	General
	General
	Q.	Please state Fctional [sic] requirements, if any.

A.	See the answer to question 43 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	197. 
	16
	3.2.2
	Q.	It has been mentioned that we have to abide with state’s web standards. can the document be shared which has these standards.

A.	See the answer to question 44 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	198. 
	23
	3.3.5
	Q.	Is Usability testing in scope

A.	Yes. It is expected that Usability testing will be part of normal user testing and will not involve a different, “outside” set of users. In other words, our testing team will also be testing usability. The offeror is free, of course, to propose using “outside” users for usability testing, provided those costs are included in your Cost Proposal.

	199. 
	24
	3.4
	Q.	Can the client share the screen shots/ screen count of the process and use cases mentioned, supported by the current system.

A.	That information is not available at this time.

	200. 
	34
	3.4.2.5
	Q.	Is design and development of E-Forms in scope? If yes then how many E-Forms are in scope?

A.	For purposes of scoping and costing, the State assumes three E-Forms will be required for the pilot, but none for the migration/upgrade of the systems using FileNet. However, should the State and the contractor jointly determine the use of E-Forms will make the migration or upgrading of FileNet easier, additional negotiations may be made at that time for the addition of E-Forms to the scope of the project.

	201. 
	Ref no 323
	(Appendix D)
3.4.1
	Q.	Would we be provided all images, videos and other graphic elements?

A.	Yes.

	202. 
	16 and 20
	3.2.2.1 and 3.2.5.8
	Q.	Is mobile documentation required? [Clarification: We are referring to user documentation that is viewable on a mobile device. Do we need to produce any user documentation viewable on a mobile device?]

A.	No.

	203. 
	26
	3.4.2.1
	Q.	Is translation of the user documentation and technical documentation materials to any particular language required?

A.	See the answer to question 31 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	204. 
	42
	3.7.2
	Q.	What are the targeted browsers?

A.	The latest version of Internet Explorer as of the final solution implementation date minus two, as of the date of this writing, IE9, 10, and 11, and the latest versions of Firefox and Chrome.

	205. 
	20
	3.2.5.8
	Q.	What are the targeted mobile operating systems and devices – Android/IOS/Windows

A.	All three is preferable. Propose what you can support.

	206. 
	26
	3.4.2.1
	Q.	What are the targeted languages and currencies?

A.	American English and U.S. dollars.

	207. 
	22
	3.3.3
	Q.	What is the targeted performance benchmark? This has a bearing on the front-end technology used for responsive web design.

A.	Based on the scenario detailed in the TCO spreadsheet and the volumes specified in other locations in the RFP, the State would like the offeror to propose what they believe will be necessary to support our need. Also, the offeror is encouraged to research common, modern, and reasonable industry norms in this area.

	208. 
	20
	3.2.5.8
	Q.	Is there any mobile app currently being used? If yes, can it be considered for re-design or do we need a ground up development?

A.	There are no mobile apps being used specifically for ECM. Smartphones and tablets are occasionally used for accessing content available over the web, but only through standard desktop web browsers on the phones (Safari, etc.).

	209. 
	20
	3.2.5.8
	Q.	Are there any transactional activities intended on devices (smartphones and tablets)? If so, what are their security requirements?

A.	None expected at this time or within the scope of the project. However, such transactions could exist in future projects due to the use of mobile devices both by the public and within State agencies.

	210. 
	17
	3.2.2.1
	Q.	Regarding the requirement - Would like to consider mobile access and the ability to upload files from phone into system –

	Devices running IOS will not allow download/upload of files. For download, the device will try to open the file in a new browser window, but there will not be any notification if that fails. Similarly, upload will be allowed for images from the Gallery only

A.	Noted. 

	211. 
	20
	3.2.5.8
	Q.	Supporting mobile devices to capture images - 
	 - this depends on the targeted browsers - as some browsers do not support it
	 - alternately, Can a mobile app can be developed to support this feature?

A.	Noted. Yes, a mobile app can be developed to support this feature, provided it is developed by the contractor. Please note that the use of mobile devices is not mandatory. We are asking you to describe your solution’s capabilities in this area.

	212. 
	General
	General
	Q.	What are the specifications for accessibility compliance – Section 508, ADA, WCAG AA/AAA

A.	Montana Enterprise IT Public Relations standard, Ref# 320, STD-Web Accessibility and Disclaimer. In addition, refer to Section 508 policy. http://www.section508.gov/section508-policies and standards at http://www.section508.gov/summary-section508-standards.

	213. 
	23
	3.3.5
	Q.	We assume the following testing types will be performed during the various phases of the project. Please confirm.
1.	During Implementation:
a.	System Testing
b.	System Integration Testing
c.	Regression Testing
d.	508 Compliance Testing 
e.	Usability Testing
f.	Mobile Testing
2.	During Pilot setup:
a.	Pilot setup support testing
3.	During Production and  Maintenance or support phase:
a.	Testing of the pilot instance
b.	Testing for fixes, patches, and major and minor releases that will be available to the State as part of the support agreement

A.	Confirmed. In addition, if the production environment is not the pilot environment, production setup support testing and pilot (MWorks) migration support testing shall also be included.

	214. 
	23
	3.3.5
	Q.	As mentioned in the RFP, “Testing of the pilot setup. It is anticipated the State will provide our own test cases/plans to test the pilot, but will undoubtedly need and want help from the contractor in setting up those cases/plans.”
	
	We assume the following support activities will be required from the contract during the pilot project. Please confirm.
a.	Support the state team in identifying/creating the test data.
b.	Executing the test cases and documenting the test results.
c.	Re-testing the defect found in the pilot phase.

A.	Confirmed. In addition, the State will likely need help creating the test cases themselves in order to assure they adequately cover everything that needs to be tested.

	215. 
	23
	3.3.5
	Q.	As mentioned in the RFP, “Testing of the pilot instance once moved into Production to ensure it continues to operate successfully”

	We assume that the test cases developed during the pilot project will be directly executed (without any changes) in the production environment to ensure it continues to operate successfully. Please confirm.

A.	The State does not believe it is necessarily true the same test cases will be able to be used in the production instance of the pilot project because the system will undoubtedly have changed during the testing that takes place during the pilot. It is essential, as stated in section 3.3.3, that the pilot be migrated from the pilot environment to the production environment (if different), not recreated from scratch in the production environment. The users must not encounter disruptions due to any reason, including loss of data.

	216. 
	15
	3.1.4
	Q.	As mentioned in the RFP, “It is imperative that the successful offeror offers affordable features and functionalities that meet agency needs for content management and records management directives, scale from an initial implementation of approximately 600 end-users to 2,000 users within 24 months, and further to an enterprise-wide deployment across multiple agencies and more than 5,000 end-users, all at an affordable per-user cost as described in Section 5 – Cost Proposal”.

	Considering the above statement do we need to perform performance testing: Load and Volume tests? Please confirm. If so is preferred tool for performance testing

A.	The State will depend on the contractor to perform all the testing, including performance testing, that is necessary to ensure a robust and successful implementation of your solution both now and into the anticipated future of the State’s use of your solution. Propose what you believe to be essential to ensure that.

	217. 
	17
	3.2.2.2
	Q.	Upgrade Work Plan for IBM FileNet Environment. Are there any existing artifacts (test cases, specification documents, etc.) that can be referred to build an effective work plan IBM FileNet environments during implementation?

A.	Other than “test” document classes and existing “real” ones, no other formal artifacts are available.

	218. 
	20
	3.2.5.8
	Q.	Mobile Support: Describe how your solution supports the use of mobile devices for browsing content, capturing images, and participating in review/approval workflows.

	Request you to provide the below details which will help us to come up with an effective work plan for mobile support:
1.	Number/type of devices on which the support is expected (Ex: Phone5, Nexus Tab, Nokia Lumia, Amazon Kindle Fire etc.)
2.	Number/type of platforms/operation system on which the support is expected (Ex: iOS, Android and Windows platform)

A.	We don’t currently have any formal mobile apps or support mobile. The custom applications  do, however function on Android smartphones currently. iOS has not been tested.

	219. 
	General
	General
	Q.	Are there any suggested test management tools to be used (Mercury QC, Rational Clear Quest etc.)?

A.	The State would like the offeror to propose using the test management tool they prefer, as long as the State has access to that tool to view test-related information.

	220. 
	Ref No 38
	Appendix D
	Q.	Please provide clarity on the number of locations where the scanning activity will be carried out?

A.	See answer to question 34.

	221. 
	Ref No 38
	Appendix D
	Q.	Please clarify on the number of documents, on an average, that will be scanned per day per location?

A.	See answer to question 35.

	222. 
	Ref No 91
	Appendix D
	Q.	Please provide clarity on the volume of data that needs to be migrated from the existing system to the proposed system?

A.	See answer question 36.

	223. 
	Ref No 91
	Appendix D
	Q.	Please provide clarity on the format of the existing data that need to be migrated from the existing system to the proposed system?

A.	See answer to question 37.

	224. 
	Ref No 144
	Appendix D
	Q.	In addition to various ECM systems within the State Government (FileNet, Laserfiche, etc.), which other non-ECM systems (ERP, HRIS, Payroll, etc.) are in place within the Department and the Agencies. Please provide the no and name of the applications.

A.	See answer to question 38.

	225. 
	24
	3.4
	Q.	Please provide the clarity about the no of concurrent users who will be accessing the proposed ECM system.

A.	See answer to question 39.

	226. 
	24
	3.4
	Q.	As per mentioned in the RFP document, The State of Montana currently uses or intends to use its ECM solution for the following types of processes and use cases:

1. Case Management
2. Claim Management
3. Permitting
4. Licensing
5. Handling FOIA Requests
6. Handling Discovery Requests
7. Grant Management
8. Student Loan Processing
9. Vendor Invoice Processing
10. Employee File Management
11. Managing Standards and Policies
12. Onboarding New Hires
13. Contract Management

	Please provide the clarity whether each of the above mentioned processes are the total no of workflows to be automated or these processes are having multiple sub processes which need to be automated as part of current project scope.

A.	See answer to question 40.

	227. 
	General
	General
	Q.	Please provide a brief overview of your current IT infrastructure including hardware, system software, database licenses, operating system etc.

A.	Duplicate. See question 41.

	228. 
	General
	General
	Q.	Will the solution deployment be centralized or each Agency will host its own solution.

A.	See answer to question 42.

	229. 
	General
	General
	Q.	Request you to please provide clarity on the uptime of the proposed solution?

A.	See answer to question 43.

	230. 
	General
	General
	Q.	Is department looking for on-premise installation or Hosted offering? Please clarify.

A.	See answer to question 44.

	231. 
	General
	General
	Q.	As per mentioned in the RFP document, the solution should have the capability for multiple languages. So please clarify whether the solution is required in multiple languages as well including English. If Yes, please share the details.

A.	See answer to question 45.

	232. 
	General
	General
	Q.	Did the department see any ECM related product demos prior to release of the RFP? If so, what are the products you have reviewed?

A.	See answer to question 46.

	233. 
	General
	General
	Q.	Is there a preferred list of system integrators that the Department works with?

A.	See answer to question 47.

	234. 
	General
	General
	Q.	What is the total budget that has been allocated for the ECM Solution?

A.	See answer to question 48.

	235. 
	14
	3.1.4
	Q.	Please provide the clarity about the timelines of the project completion.

A.	See answer to question 49.

	236. 
	36
	3.4.2.5
	Q.	General Solution Question 17. Please provide clarity whether setting up of DR site is part of current project scope.

A.	See answer to question 50.

	237. 
	42
	3.8
	Q.	How many users need to be trained as part of current project scope?

A.	See answer to question 51.

	238. 
	Ref No 269
	Appendix D
	Q.	Please specify if  the training content has to be prepared in multiple language. Online help utility needs to be developed in which all languages. Ability to change between languages is required in same?

A.	See the answer to question 31 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	239. 
	14
	3.1.3
	Q.	In 3.2.2.3 Migration Work Plan from IBM FileNet Environment section it talks about migration from FileNet system if the proposed solution is  not IBM FileNet P8 however other than 12 agencies ,rest of the agencies are using any of the ECM system listed in 3.1.3 State and Agency ECM Environments section. Does that mean proposed solution is only for 12 agencies who are using FileNet currently?

A.	No, it does not.  The State’s objective is to immediately migrate the existing SITSD FileNet users to the new system, and then to convince additional agencies to migrate to the new system as soon as possible.  

	240. 
	15
	3.1.4
	Q.	This is mentioned that proposed solution should scale up from an initial implementation of approximately 600 end-users to 2,000 users within 24 months, and further to an enterprise wide deployment across multiple agencies and more than 5,000 end-users. Please provide more details on the scalability from overall data volume perspective

A.	The data volumes are anticipated to grow faster than the user base. For purposes of estimating the storage requirements in your RFP response, use the storage and document volumes in the “5.1 Scenario” tab of the TCO worksheet.

	241. 
	15
	3.1.5
	Q.	Is there any specific acceptance criteria for Pilot Project?

A.	As stated in sections 3.1.5 and 3.3.3 of the RFP, the pilot acceptance criteria will be jointly developed by the contractor, the Department of Labor and Industry (DLI) and the Department of Administration (DOA).

	242. 
	24
	3.3.8
	Q.	The State expects its staff to participate fully in solution implementation, design and deployment in order to ensure the solution meets State expectations and State staff are capable of supporting the solution when it becomes operational, Please specify what are the different roles to be shared between offeror and state

A.	See the answer to question 45 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	243. 
	General
	General
	Q.	Based on our understanding State will take care of UAT execution and UAT test case writing whereas offeror will be responsible for SIT test cases and SIT execution. However in both SIT and UAT Phase bug fixing support will be provided by offeror. Please confirm.

A.	Correct.

	244. 
	General
	General
	Q.	Please confirm if the project will be executed in onsite offshore mode or it will be executed completely from onsite

A.	See the answer to question 6 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	245. 
	General
	General
	Q.	MultiLingual support: Which languages need to be supported? 

	What is the level of multi-lingual support which is needed? Does it restrict to UI only? Or will this include storage [data], documents generation, reporting, email notification?

A.	See the answer to question 31 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	246. 
	General
	General
	Q.	Which all languages need to be supported on the mobile version of the application

A.	See the answer to question 31 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	247. 
	37
	3.5.2
	Q.	While the need for cloud based architecture is defined, does any business process require offline components that would be required to process/hold data on the device when offline and port data when connected to the cloud?

A.	Yes. 

	248. 
	17
	3.2.2.3
	Q.	It's mentioned that 17.4 million workflow objects needs to be migrated. Request you to please provide workflow details currently being used over IBM FileNet

A.	See the answer to question 108.

	249. 
	General
	General
	Q.	Please confirm if following should be part of scope
	 - Performance Testing
	 - Stress Testing
	 - Load Testing

A.	See the answer to question 216.

	250. 
	General
	General
	Q.	What all functionalities are desired over mobile and who will be end users for same? SMS notifications should be considered as part of scope? Which all will be targeted Mobile platforms, their version and devices (tablets, phone etc.)?

A.	The State does not consider mobile functionality to be necessary for this solution, although it is very attractive. The offeror is encouraged to expand upon the mobile capabilities that are part of your solution, both “out of the box” and programmable, being sure to indicate which ones are which. This is an area where offerors may differentiate themselves from others.

	251. 
	General
	General
	Q.	Please provide details of reporting requirement in terms of approximately how many reports are required, with key objectives and intended audience

A.	A content and records management system is expected to produce a number of common, generic, and functionally appropriate reports applicable to content and records management. Describe what reports your solution provides “out of the box” along with the ease of creating new reports or customizing reports as necessary.

	252. 
	32
	3.4.2.2
	Q.	For existing workflows is there any rule engine being used? If yes, please provide details of same

A.	The State is currently using VW Workflow in Images Services, which does not use a rules engine.

	253. 
	General
	General
	Q.	Is there any existing ticketing systems/defect management system used for Support?

A.	The State uses Wendia’s Point of Business (POB) G6.

	254. 
	Ref No 327
	Appendix D
	Q.	Please elaborate requirement. Approximately how many templates required to be created and stored  

A.	For the pilot (MWorks) assume 5. For other current FileNet applications, assume none in Image Services and 10 others. See the answer to question 137. See the answer to question 251.

	255. 
	Ref No 24
	Appendix D
	Q.	Please elaborate requirement. Approximately how many templates required to be created and stored  

A.	See the answer to question 254.

	256. 
	Ref No 199
	Appendix D
	Q.	In which form data needs to be transferred. Can we have medium and external system details

A.	The Historical Society does not yet have the archival system to which we will eventually be wanting to transfer content. The State is interested in what your solution brings to the table in regards to interfacing with archival systems, which may boil down to just interfacing with other ECM systems.

	257. 
	14
	3.1.3
	Q.	Can the State provide any additional context regarding its intent to move away from the incumbent IBM solution?

A.	See the answer to question 47 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	258. 
	14-15
	3.1.3
	Q.	Please provide volume information for each of the State and Agency ECM Environments, including total number of records/documents as well as size/volume:
• IBM FileNet
• Microsoft CRM
• Laserfiche
• Docuware
• SharePoint
• Perceptive Software
• Tyler-Eagle Recorder
• C-Track
• Home Grown (Custom)

A.	See the answer to question 1 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	259. 
	15
	3.2.1
	Q.	Does the State have a preference for an on-premise solution versus a cloud-hosted solution?

A.	See the answer to question 49 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	260. 
	15
	3.2.2
	Q.	Are there Specification & Procedure Manuals available for current systems and processes?

A.	No. See also the answer to question 1 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	261. 
	16
	3.2.2.1
	Q.	Does the State have an existing Retention Schedule and/or File Plan in place? If so, please provide copies as appropriate. Please confirm whether the research and development of a Retention Schedule or File Plan is required as part of this project.

A.	The State has many retention schedules and file plans. For examples of retention schedules, See the Secretary of State (SOS) website at http://sos.mt.gov/Records/State/index.asp. Scroll to the bottom to see a list of schedules. For examples of file plans, See the answer to question 22. Research and/or development of retention schedules or file plans are not required as part of this project. In total agencies also have hundreds of their own specific retention plans in addition to the general SOS retention schedules.

	262. 
	16
	3.2.2.1
	Q.	How many users would be included in the Pilot Implementation within the Department of Labor and Industry (DLI)? Please break out the user types: Administrators, Advanced Users, Public Users, Basic Users, End Users, etc.

A.	2 Admins
2 Advanced
10-45 Basic
Zero (0) Public Users

	263. 
	17
	3.2.2.3
	Q.	Does the current FileNet environment include annotations?  If so, is it acceptable to render the annotations as textual notes in the document’s metadata?

A.	Yes, but note that some annotations are being used for redaction of information currently and not just for writing notes on documents.  The redaction annotations could not be rendered as textual notes in the document’s metadata.

	264. 
	17
	3.2.2.3
	Q.	Please provide the Make/Model of any Optical Jukeboxes

A.	The State has no remaining optical jukeboxes.

	265. 
	17
	3.2.2.3
	Q.	Please provide the media specifications of all optical media utilized (Ex: 5.25”- 2.6 GB & 5.25” - 1.3GB, etc.)

A.	The State has no remaining optical media.

	266. 
	17
	3.2.2.3
	Q.	Please provide the number of optical platters (by media size) utilized for FileNet IS Primary surfaces.

A.	The State has no remaining optical platters.

	267. 
	17
	3.2.2.3
	Q.	Please provide the number of optical platters (by media size) utilized for FileNet IS TransLog surfaces.

A.	The State has no remaining optical media.

	268. 
	18
	3.2.3
	Q.	Detailed cost information is confidential based on customer request. Is it acceptable to provide a cost range to honor the customer request while still meeting your need for information?

A.	No.

	269. 
	19
	3.2.3.2
	Q.	Is it acceptable if the key members of our proposed project team have experience with similarly-sized FileNet conversions, but their experience was gained and work performed while they were with a different company?

A.	See the answer to question 50 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	270. 
	19-20
	3.2.5
	Q.	Some integrations listed within this section are available out-of-the-box, while others would require customization based on your intended use and environment. Please provide additional details around each of the requested integrations, if available.

A.	The State does not have any plans to integrate the EM solution with other systems beyond the pilot (MWorks) and the existing applications using FileNet.  However, we are interested in learning about possible integrations with the systems identified in Section 3.2.5, in the event a business need emerges that would require integration.

	271. 
	21
	3.3
	Q.	Can the Contractor be provided with secure remote access (in the case of an on-premise system) following contract award given that the State does not have available onsite facilities or work space?

A.	Yes. Also, See the answer to question 6 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	272. 
	22
	3.3.3
	Q.	Does the State have a template or previous version of Pilot Acceptance Criteria? If so, please provide a copy for review.

A.	The State does not.

	273. 
	23
	3.3.5
	Q.	Does the State have Regression Testing criteria for current systems that would be mandatory for use with the proposed solution? If so, please provide.

A.	No.

	274. 
	26
	3.4.2.1
	Q.	Question # 4 is unclear. Could you please provide additional explanation as to the goal of this inquiry?

	“4. Describe how your solution supports in-context, what you see is what you get (WYSIWYG), editing?”

A.	For functions where a WYSIWYG development environment might be useful, such as user interface design, including e-forms, report design, redaction, renditioning, or image editing, please provide a description of what your solution provides.

	275. 
	32
	3.4.2.2
	Q.	Does the State have diagrams or documentation for existing Workflows? If so, please provide copies as appropriate.

A.	Please see the attachment to addendum 3 posted on the solicitation website.

	276. 
	36
	3.4.2.5.16
	Q.	Does the State utilize an existing e-fax or unified messaging (e.g., inbound fax to e-mail) solution?

A.	No, but some agencies within the State do use fax-to-image functionality. None of these systems are within the scope of this project.

	277. 
	69
	18.3
	Q.	Has funding been budgeted or allocated for this project? If so, can the State provide the available budget?

A.	See the answer to question 48.

	278. 
	n/a
	Appx D #27
	Q.	Please elaborate on the requirement to convert content, specifically content within a workflow process.  For example, is it acceptable to have a PDF rendition of content, or does the State require a specific format?

A.	The State desires more than just a conversion to PDF. Several different types of documents might be preferred depending on the circumstance. Please provide a description of what is provided by your solution.

	279. 
	n/a
	Appx D #40
	Q.	Is it acceptable for users to manually create a revision and scrub a document, or does the State desire a more robust automatic sanitization/redaction tool?

A.	Although an automatic capability might be attractive in some circumstances, it is not required at this time. If your solution provides any sort of automatic capability, describe.

	280. 
	n/a
	Appx D #45
	Q.	Does the State have existing licenses for Kofax Capture that can be utilized for this project?

A.	No.

	281. 
	n/a
	Appx D #61
	Q.	Automatically capturing and displaying the number of pages in a document can be difficult when storing documents in their native format.  Is it acceptable if this requirement is limited to PDF or scanned documents?  Or can the requirement simply be met by allowing a user to easily preview the document in a viewer that provides a page number display?

A.	In your proposal, discuss the various factors that can make it difficult to be able to calculate a page count that provides any real meaning, then explain what it is you might present as worth more to us or as an alternative. The requirement shall remain “Essential”.  “Essential” does not mean mandatory, in the sense of  “make-or-break.” It only means it’s very important to our users and worth one more point than a Highly Desired one.

	282. 
	n/a
	Appx D #101
	Q.	While it is possible to set timeout limits, the requirement for the system to proactively know how long the search will take is not possible given the various environmental factors at play.  Will the State consider removing this requirement or changing it to highly desired?

A.	In your proposal, discuss the various factors that can make it difficult to know the time it takes to perform queries and retrievals, then explain what it is you can propose for this. The requirement shall remain “Essential.” Remember that as emphasized in the pre-proposal conference, “Essential” does not mean mandatory, in the sense of ”make-or-break.” It only means it’s very important to our users and worth one more point than a Highly Desired one.

	283. 
	n/a
	Appx D #150
	Q.	Can the State elaborate on what is meant by “parallel relationship”?

A.	See the answer to question 161.

	284. 
	n/a
	Appx D #159
	Q.	Can the State clarify what is meant by “next event definition”?

A.	This is a predetermined event which follows one or more preceding predetermined events.  This occurs in a standardized, predetermined workflow.

	285. 
	n/a
	Appx D #163
	Q.	Can the State provide examples of the envisioned types of user-configurable notifications based on user-defined Event Triggers?

A.	An example might include an instance where a specific record or a series of records are on legal hold due to pending litigation.  The litigation is scheduled to be complete by a certain date.  That forecasted date would be a user-defined event trigger which would notify the applicable parties to determine whether the legal hold can be lifted, or if the event trigger should be reset.

	286. 
	n/a
	Appx D #171
	Q.	Can the State provide an example or more detail regarding the requirement to “automatically create records based on customized rules”?

A.	The State desires the capability to define business rules within the ECM solution to automatically create state records under certain, user-defined circumstances. An example of this might be when live birth (“birth certificate”) information gets entered into a system designed to record that information. An integration with the ECM solution might use rules to determine that a formal state record should be created that this time. Another example might be content that is in a draft state and at a certain point needs to be approved as final and a formal record of the document be created.

	287. 
	n/a
	Appx D #244
	Q.	Can the State please provide an example or more detail regarding the definition of “conditional functional restriction based upon record metadata”?

A.	If predefined words or phrases are detected within the metadata for a given electronic record, then security restrictions are automatically imposed upon the record (content) which limits the accessibility of the information.

	288. 
	n/a
	Appx D #245
	Q.	Does “compliant” mean “certified”?

A.	No, Compliant means to abide by and operate within the boundaries, rules and requirements as set forth in State of Montana policy and/or standard.

	289. 
	n/a
	Appx D #257
	Q.	Can the State provide a detailed description or definition of what constitutes a “system override”?

A.	In this context, a system override is when a user of the system overrides some piece of functionality, often related to security, and does something different with the data. These are not break-ins, or security violations. An example of this might be a manager, who has the authority, going into the system and performing some function that is seen as an “override,” such as removing the need for approval at a higher level. Again, the manager has this authority, but we want the system to track it. It is anticipated that many of these will be uniquely defined by those using the solution.

	290. 
	n/a
	Appx D #261
	Q.	Can the State please clarify which specific IRS confidentiality requirements shall be adhered to?

A.	See the answer to question 165.

	291. 
	n/a
	Appx D #292
	Q.	Can the State provide a screenshot or example of the nested locations construct described in requirement 297?

A.	A nested structure is one like Windows Explorer,  that allows for the storage of content within that structure. It is desired that documents could be scanned, and based on the value of metadata found on that document, such as OCR/ICR’ed content or a barcode; the document would be stored in the proper place in the folder structure.

	292. 
	n/a
	Appx D #296
	Q.	Is the requirement for the RMA to be 100% browser-based truly a mandatory requirement?  This may impose restrictions on the extent of integration with desktop applications or systems like barcode scanners, TWAIN-based document scanners, ODMA-based authoring applications, and Outlook (as required in requirement Ref# 154).  In addition, requirement ref# 116 specifically calls for the availability of a desktop client.

	Would the State consider a hybrid solution in which the majority of end users utilize a web client while a small number of users utilize a desktop (thick) client?

A.	The State prefers a 100% browser-based solution, but recognizes the possibility that some functions may not be allowed or supported within the browser. The State asks that you propose what your solution requires along with an explanation of why the browser cannot be used for this or that function. If there are ways around browser limitations, such as a secured, trusted access to the desktop, for example, the State would want to see those alternatives described as well.

	293. 
	n/a
	Appx D #309
	Q.	The requirement to store content/record series to be stored in “libraries” seems ambiguous.  Can the State elaborate on the vision or functionality specific to these “libraries”?

A.	A “library” is analogous to a dedicated network storage drive.  See http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Digital_library and http://home.wlu.edu/~whaleyt/classes/DigiLib/Whaley/Definition.html for a complete definition.  

	For purposes of this RFP, a digital or electronic library is a place where electronic content is stored for a particular organization.  The library is managed, maintained, and functions according to that organization’s requirements.

	294. 
	n/a
	Appx D #304
	Q.	In the case of an on-premise solution where the State provides storage, does this requirement still apply?

A.	Yes. In the case of an on-premise solution, the offeror is expected to answer this question with respect to their solution’s storage requirements. For example, if you knew your solution requires four times the storage capacity than any other solution, you couldn’t very well say it met this requirement.

	295. 
	n/a
	Appx D #312
	Q.	Does the State have a preference for using Microsoft SharePoint for content threads and/or collaboration?

A.	See the answer to question 52 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	296. 
	n/a
	Appx D #336
	Q.	Can the State provide more clarity or an example of the “quality assurance verification” required during initial implementation?

A.	When the contractor’s product is initially installed/implemented, the State requires the contractor perform an adequate number and type of tests to verify the solution is performing as it should. This is to avoid the situation where a vendor installs a product and it isn’t tested until the State first tries to use it. The contractor is expected to come to Montana with a full suite of installation tests that it will use to verify a successful installation before the pilot begins. The DLI pilot staff must not be used as installation testers.

	297. 
	7
	1.6, 1.6.1
	Q.	Pursuant to section 1.6.1 of the RFP issued by the State of Montana (State), [Offeror Name] (Offeror, Licensor) proposes the following changes to the terms and conditions of the RFP. Insertions are underlined and deletions are stricken through. All other proposals will be indicated in bold. These proposals are for State’s review and input. Notwithstanding what is stated in sections 1.6.1, 2.4.10, and Appendix A of the RFP, Offeror shall not be bound to any terms and conditions of the RFP or to any contract related to the RFP until or unless: (i) State confirms in writing its acceptance of these deviations as fully incorporated therein; or (ii) authorized representatives of both parties execute a written contract that is separate from the RFP.

A.	The State rejects this exception. 

	Because of the potential scope and complexity of the ECM solution being acquired under this RFP, it is the intent of the State to enter into a contract with a sole contractor responsible for all aspects of the ECM solution, including software licensing, maintenance and support, installation, and professional services needed to meet the requirements of the RFP.  The Agreements contained in Appendix B were specifically written for this particular situation.  As such, the State will not enter into any 3rd party contracts or reseller agreements, including software End User License Agreements and/or software maintenance and support agreements, or modify any language contained in Appendix B that materially changes the intent of these agreements.

	298. 
	12
	2.4.10
	Q.	Pursuant to section 1.6.1 of the RFP issued by the State of Montana (State), [Offeror Name] (Offeror, Licensor) proposes the following changes to the terms and conditions of the RFP. Insertions are underlined and deletions are stricken through. All other proposals will be indicated in bold. These proposals are for State’s review and input. Notwithstanding what is stated in sections 1.6.1, 2.4.10, and Appendix A of the RFP, Offeror shall not be bound to any terms and conditions of the RFP or to any contract related to the RFP until or unless: (i) State confirms in writing its acceptance of these deviations as fully incorporated therein; or (ii) authorized representatives of both parties execute a written contract that is separate from the RFP.

A.	The State rejects this exception. See answer to question 297.

	299. 
	60
	Appendix A
	Q.	Pursuant to section 1.6.1 of the RFP issued by the State of Montana (State), [Offeror Name] (Offeror, Licensor) proposes the following changes to the terms and conditions of the RFP. Insertions are underlined and deletions are stricken through. All other proposals will be indicated in bold. These proposals are for State’s review and input. Notwithstanding what is stated in sections 1.6.1, 2.4.10, and Appendix A of the RFP, Offeror shall not be bound to any terms and conditions of the RFP or to any contract related to the RFP until or unless: (i) State confirms in writing its acceptance of these deviations as fully incorporated therein; or (ii) authorized representatives of both parties execute a written contract that is separate from the RFP.

A.	The State rejects this exception. See answer to question 297.

	300. 
	6
	1.2
	Q.	The contract period is five year(s), beginning January 1, 2015, and ending December 31, 2019, inclusive. The parties may mutually agree to a renewal of this contract in one-year intervals, or any interval that is advantageous to the State. This contract, including any renewals, may not exceed a total of ten years, at the State's option.

	[Offeror name] merely requests that all contract extensions be by mutual agreement.

A.	The State rejects the proposed changes, as amendments for renewals to the contract, require both parties’ signatures.

	301. 
	8
	1.6.7
	Q.	All known subcontractors must be listed in the proposal. The contractor may not subcontract or delegate performance under this contract with other entities or third parties or change subcontractors without written consent of the State such approval not to be unreasonably withheld. The contactor shall require all subcontractors, if any, to adhere to the same policies, standards required of the contractor in this RFP and subsequent contract

	As a reseller of subcontracted services, [Offeror Name] needs to retain the right to subcontract out work to its service providers.

A.	The State will accept this additional language.

	302. 
	24
	3.3.8
	Q.	Offeror proposes that any Independent Verification and Validation company hired by the State to verify the Offeror’s solution shall be required to sign Offeror’s Standard Non-Disclosure Agreement.

	The proposed language seeks to protect [Offeror Name] methods, practices, know-how and knowledge in creating, providing and performing any on-site services.

A.	The State cannot answer this question without first reviewing the Offeror’s Standard Non-Disclosure Agreement. Offerors should be aware the State Laws of Montana may prohibit this type of agreement. 

	303. 
	61 - 62
	Appendix B
1
	Q.	This term was modified to reflect the fact that the software manufacturer (IBM) is the ultimate source of the software, not [Offeor Name], which is merely acting as a reseller.

	"Licensed Software" or "Software" means the compiled, machine-readable, and/or executable version of the software and related documentation now in use Licensor the software manufacturer and as may be improved or modified by Licensor  the software manufacturer in the future, as more fully described on Schedule A, including, but not limited to, the Documentation, and Updates, and any Upgrades acquired by the State under this Agreement.

A.	The State does not agree to these proposed changes. See answer to question 297.

	304. 
	62
	Appendix B
1
	Q.	“Pilot” means an initial roll out of a system into production, targeting a limited scope of the intended final solution.  The expectations and scope of the pilot is documented in a pilot work plan. The success of the pilot may be used to determine whether to continue with the contract or terminate.
	[Offeror Name] seeks the industry standard 30 day cure period, allowing [Offeror Name] the fullest opportunity to cure any potential problems, if any, sufficiently.

A.	The State does not agree to these proposed changes, however the State is willing to negotiate with the Successful Offeror, a 30 day cure period in section 18.2 of the On-Premise Contract.

	305. 
	62
	Appendix B
1
	Q.	“Services” means the services provided to the State by Licensor under this Agreement. Services include, but are not be limited to, consulting, implementation, customization and other services provided to the State by Licensor under this Agreement.,  together with all documentation provided by or otherwise required of Licensor for any of the consulting, implementation, customization or other services it provides.

	[Offeror Name] proposed this modification to separate out the ownership of Work Product from the definition of Services. The proposed language seeks to protect [Offeror Name] methods, practices, know-how and knowledge in creating, providing and performing any on-site services.

A.	The State is willing to negotiate this change during the contract refinement process. Also, see answer to question 307.

	306. 
	62
	Appendix B
1
	Q.	"Term" means the time period that applies to this Agreement, beginning on the Effective Date and continuing perpetually thereafter ending five (5) years later unless terminated under Section 15.

	This definition was modified to make it consistent with the 5 year initial term elsewhere in the agreement.

A.	The State rejects your changes, but corrects this definition to the following (new language underlined, old language interlined):

	"Term" means the time period that applies to this Agreement, beginning on the Effective Date and continuing perpetually thereafter unless terminated under Section 15 as defined in section 18.

	307. 
	62
	Appendix B
1
	Q.	Add the following definition:

	“Work Product” means materials and other deliverables to be provided or created individually or jointly in connection with the Services, including but not limited to, all inventions, discoveries, methods, processes, formulae, ideas, concepts, techniques, know-how, data, designs, models, prototypes, works of authorship, computer programs, proprietary tools, methods of analysis and other information, whether or not capable of protection by patent, copyright, trade secret, confidentiality, or other proprietary rights, or discovered in the course of performance of this Agreement that are embodied in such work or materials.

	[Offeror Name] proposed this additional term to separate out the ownership of Work Product from the definition of Services. The proposed language seeks to protect [Offeror Name] methods, practices, know-how and knowledge in creating, providing and performing any on-site services.

A.	The State rejects the definition above but does add the following definition to Appendix B, On Premise Contract:

	“Work Product” means, except for the Licensor Information, all deliverables and other materials, products or modifications developed or prepared for the State by Licensor under this Agreement, including without limitation, any integration software or other software, all data, program images and text viewable on the Internet, any HTML code relating thereto, or any program code, including program code created, developed or prepared by Provider under or in support of the performance of its obligations under this Agreement, including manuals, training materials and documentation.

	308. 
	64
	Appendix B
5.5
	Q.	Licensor shall invoice the State separately for each transaction. Licensor shall send invoices to the address set forth in any purchase order. All payment terms will be computed from the Acceptance Date or services OR receipt  date of a properly executed invoice whichever is later. Unless otherwise noted, the State is allowed 30 days to pay such invoices. Licensor shall provide banking information at the time of contract execution in order to facilitate State electronic funds transfer payments.

	[Offeror Name] is merely requesting payment an industry standard 30 days after the invoice date.

A.	The State does not accept these proposed changes.

	309. 
	64
	Appendix B
5.6
	Q.	Despite the State’s rights to license Licensor’s products as described in Section 2.1, tThe State is not obligated to purchase or license from Licensor any of Licensor’s products software licenses. This Agreement is non-exclusive and the State may, at its sole discretion, purchase, license or otherwise receive benefits from third party suppliers of products and services similar to, or in competition with, the products and services provided by Licensor.

	The language was modified to reflect the fact that [Offeror Name] (Licensor) does not license any products of its own. [Offeror Name] is a reseller

A.	The State does not accept these proposed changes. See answer to question 297.

	310. 
	68
	Appendix B
15
	Q.	Add the following 

	Notwithstanding what is stated in in the provisions of this section, Offeror’s indemnification obligations under this section shall be limited to the following: Offeror shall defend or, at its option, settle any claim, action or suit (each, an “IP Claim”) brought by a third party against State on the basis of infringement of any U.S. patent, trademark, copyright or trade secret by any items provided during the provision of the Services (“Infringing Items”) and shall pay any final judgment or settlement arising therefrom; provided State gives Offeror prompt written notice of the IP Claim, sole control over the defense or settlement thereof, and reasonable information and assistance, at Offeror’s expense. Should the Infringing Items, or any part thereof, become, or in Offeror’s opinion be likely to become, the subject of an IP Claim, Offeror may, at its option and expense, either (a) obtain for State the right to use Infringing Items; (b) modify or replace the items to make them non-infringing; or (c) return the portion of the fees paid associated with the Infringing Items.

	[Offeror Name] comment: [Offeror Name] is a reseller and cannot warrant IP protection for products, but for the on-site subcontracted services [Offeror Name] offers the following protections: [Offeror Name] will either (1) obtain for the District the right to use infringing items; (2) modify or replace the items to make them non-infringing; or (3) return the portion of the fees paid associated with the infringing items.

A.	The State does not accept this additional language. See answer to question 297.

	311. 
	68
	Appendix B
16
	Q.	Add the following:

	Notwithstanding the provisions of this section, Offeror proposes that neither party will be liable for any consequential, punitive, special, or any other indirect damages, or any other damages exceeding $50,000.

	The language of this provision is aligned with [Offeror Name] business model of being a reseller of IT products and services, and with the company’s risk profile for the work it does.

A.	The State does not agree to add this proposed language. See answer to question 297.

	312. 
	68-69
	Appendix B
17 (17.1, 17.2, 17.3 inclusive)
	Q.	The proposed edits seek to align the insurance to [Offeror Name] business model, as a product reseller and provider of subcontracted services.

	17 – Required Insurance - 

	17.1  General Requirements.  Licensor and its agents, representatives, assigns and subcontractors shall maintain for the duration of the Agreement, at its cost and expense, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property, including contractual liability, which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work by Licensor, agents, employees, representatives, assigns, or subcontractors. This insurance shall cover such claims as may be caused by any negligent act or omission.

	17.2 Primary Insurance - Licensor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance with respect to the State, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers and its general liability policy shall apply separately to each project or location. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the State, its officers, officials, employees or volunteers shall be excess of Licensor’s insurance and shall not contribute with it.

	17.3 Specific Requirements for Commercial General Liability - The State of Montana shall be named included as an additional insured for its acts or omissions and those of Licensor.

A.	The State does not agree to any of the proposed changes.

	313. 
	69
	Appendix B
18.2
	Q.	– Within 30 calendar days of notice of termination, the State shall receive a full refund of the license fees paid per Section 4.1 of this Agreement.  

	The subject matter of this provision will be covered by the end user license agreement between State and the software manufacturer, e.g., IBM.

A.	The State does not agree to this deletion. See answer to question 297.

	314. 
	69-70
	Appendix B
18.5
	Q.	- Licensor may not terminate the licenses granted in this Agreement for any reason unless Licensor terminates this Agreement pursuant to this Section.

	As a reseller of IT products and services, [Offeror Name] is neither the manufacturer of the products not provider of the services for many of the items it sells. [Offeror Name] cannot warrant the quality of the products and services that it merely resells; therefor any quality issues with respect to these items should not be the cause of breach of contract.

A.	The State does not agree to this deletion. See answer to question 297.

	315. 
	70
	Appendix B
19.1
	Q.	Any one or more of the following Licensor acts or omissions constitute an event of material breach under this contract:
•	products or services furnished  fail to conform to any requirement; 
•	failure to submit any report required by this contract; 
•	failure to perform any of the other terms and conditions of this contract, including but not limited to beginning work under this contract without prior State approval; or
•	voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy or receivership.

	As a reseller of IT products and services, [Offeror Name] is neither the manufacturer of the products not provider of the services for many of the items it sells. [Offeror Name] cannot warrant the quality of the products and services that it merely resells; therefor any quality issues with respect to these items should not be the cause of breach of contract.

A.	The State does not agree to this deletion. See answer to question 297.

	316. 
	70
	Appendix B
20
	Q.	- In addition to the rights and remedies of the State set forth in this Agreement and those provided under law, (a) if the State terminates this Agreement for material breach by Licensor before the expiration of the Acceptance Period, the State is entitled to a full refund, within 30 calendar days after notice of termination, of all license fees, Maintenance Fees and other fees paid hereunder, and (b) if the State terminates Maintenance Services for default, the State is entitled to a pro rata refund of all prepaid Maintenance Fees for the period after the date of termination.

	The subject matter of this provision will be covered by the end user license agreement between State and the software manufacturer, IBM.

A.	The State does not agree to this deletion. See answer to question 297.

	317. 
	71
	Appendix B
23
	Q.	- The Parties agree that all Software delivered under this Agreement and the Documentation therefor constitute "intellectual property" under Section 101(35A) of the United States Bankruptcy Code (11 U.S.C.  §101(35A)). Licensor agrees that if it, as a debtor-in-possession, or if a trustee in bankruptcy for Licensor, in a case under the Code, rejects this Agreement, the State may elect to retain its rights under this Agreement as provided in 11 U.S.C. § 365(n). The State, and any intellectual property rights, licenses or assignments from Licensor of which the State may have the benefit, shall receive the full protection granted to the State by applicable bankruptcy law. For purposes of 11 U.S.C. § 365(n), royalty payments include only the license fee described in Schedule B, Section 1.1 for Licensor’s granting of the license to use the Software.  Royalty payments do not include payments to Licensor for maintenance, training, development or implementation or any other payments besides the license fee.

	The subject matter of this provision will be covered by the end user license agreement between State and the software manufacturer, IBM.

A.	The State does not agree to this deletion. See answer to question 297.

	318. 
	71
	Appendix B
25
	Q.	Licensor may not assign, transfer, or subcontract any portion of this contract without the State's prior written consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.  (18-4-141, MCA.)  Licensor is responsible to the State for the acts and omissions of all subcontractors or agents and of persons directly or indirectly employed by such subcontractors, and for the acts and omissions of persons employed directly by Licensor.  No contractual relationships exist between any subcontractor and the State under this contract.

	As a reseller of subcontracted services, [Offeror Name] needs to retain the right to subcontract out work to its service providers.

A.	The State does not agree to the deletion of “transfer, or subcontract”, but does agree to “which shall not be unreasonably withheld”. 

	319. 
	73
	Appendix B
31
	Q.	Neither Party shall be responsible for delays or failure to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement due to causes beyond its reasonable control. Such causes include without limitation, acts or omissions of government or military authority, acts of God, materials shortages, transportation delays, fires, floods, labor disturbances, riots, wars, terrorist acts or any other causes, directly or indirectly beyond the reasonable control of the nonperforming party.  However, the non-delayed party may terminate or suspend its performance under this Agreement if the delayed party fails to perform it obligations under this Agreement for more than 15 consecutive calendar days.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the State’s payment obligations may be suspended or diminished if it is denied access to the Subscription Services for more than 5 days.

	This provision was based on [Offeror Name] business model as a reseller of products and provider of subcontracted services, and includes a force majeure clause which is customary and typical for this type of engagement. [Offeror Name] has a world-wide supply chain, which may be effected by a variety of factors outside of its control. [Offeror Name] merely seeks to maintain the contractual relationship even where forces beyond its control have disrupted its ability to perform under the contract.

A.	The State does not agree to this deletion. See answer to question 297.

	320. 
	73
	Appendix B
33.3
	Q.	If there is a conflict between the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Statement of Work, or other referenced attachment to this Agreement, the order of precedence is:
•	First, this Agreement; Licensor’s proposal as amended;
•	Second, the Statement of Work;
•	Third, RFP as amended; and 
•	Fourth, this Agreement.

	[Offeror Name] requests the modifications indicated above so that its proposal (including the exceptions it proposes) will be considered first in order of precedence, and take priority over the state’s default language

A.	The State does not agree to these proposed changes. 

	321. 
	76
	Schedule B
2.3 – 2.4
	Q.	2.3 Increases in Annual Maintenance Fee.  Licensor maintenance fees may be increased after the initial year of maintenance provided 90 days prior written notice is received by the State. The maintenance fee increase may not exceed the lesser of (1) 5% or, (2) the CPI index or, (3) the price charged to Licensor’s most favored customer. The State may terminate the maintenance any time on or before 60 days of receipt of Licensor’s written notice of a price increase.

	2.4 Reinstatement. If maintenance and support services lapse, the State may reinstate maintenance and support at any time by issuing a Purchase Order for maintenance and support services. The reinstatement fees may not exceed the monthly fee for the number of delinquent months multiplied by 50%.

	[Offeror Name] proposes that the 2 provisions above be deleted from the RFP terms, since they deal with software license issues. The State’s rights with respect to the software licenses are specified in the end user license agreement between IBM and State.  

A.	The State does not agree to these proposed changes.

	322. 
	General
	General
	Q.	Additional Provisions: 

	[Offeror Name] comment: These additional provisions were proposed based on [Offeror Name] business model as a reseller of products and provider of subcontracted services.

	Before the Services are to be performed, Offeror will create a Statement of Work (SOW) detailing the exact scoping and pricing of the Services to be provided, which will be executed by both parties prior to the start of Services. The SOW will reflect the terms and conditions as negotiated between the parties during the bidding and contracting process.

	[Offeror Name] has a standardized SOW drafting and negotiation process. As a provider and reseller of professional IT services, [Offeror Name] needs to clearly delineate the roles, risks, and responsibilities of all parties involved for the services projects that it oversees and sells. These risk management goals are accomplished in part by [Offeror Name] SOW drafting and negotiation processes. 

	Notwithstanding the provisions of section 3.3.3 Managing the Pilot, section 3.3.6 ECM Production Implementation, and section 7.1 of Appendix B (Successful Pilot), Offeror proposes the following language to govern acceptance of the Pilot: (a) State shall have a period of three (3) business days from Offeror’s initial delivery of each Work Product under the Pilot (“Acceptance Period”) to confirm that such Work Product materially conforms to the Pilot Acceptance Criteria. Work Product is deemed accepted if: (a) State delivers to Offeror written notice of acceptance of the Work Product; (b) State fails to specify, by the last day of the Acceptance Period, any Nonconformities (meaning material failures of Work Product to comply with Pilot Acceptance Criteria, provided that such failure is not attributable in whole or in part to State's actions or inaction) in the form of a written list that is sufficiently detailed to allow Offeror to determine why such Work Product is nonconforming (“Nonconformance List”); (c) State uses the Work Product in a production setting after expiration of the Acceptance Period; or (d) the Work Product is altered by anyone other than Offeror or a party acting in accordance with Offeror’s instructions; (b) Within fifteen (15) business days after Offeror's timely receipt of a Nonconformities List, Offeror shall either: (a) use reasonable commercial efforts to repair the Nonconformities so that the applicable Work Product substantially conform(s) to the Pilot Acceptance Criteria and to resubmit such Work Product to State; or (b) present State with a plan to repair the relevant Nonconformities within a period of time that is reasonable under the circumstances.

	[Offeror Name] seeks the industry standard 3 day acceptance period, allowing [Offeror Name] the fullest opportunity to cure any potential problems, if any, sufficiently.

	[Offeror Name] will only act as a reseller of the software licenses, which are originally licensed by the software manufacturer, IBM. [Offeror Name] therefore proposes that the following sections of Appendix B – On Premise Contract should not be incorporated into the terms and conditions of this RFP: 2 (Licenses), 3 (Licensor Obligations), 6 (Documentation), 7.2 (Acceptance Period for Upgrades), 9 (Upgrades), 11 (Source Code Escrow), 14.6, and Schedule A. [Offeror Name]  proposes that the subject matter of these sections of Appendix B should be governed instead by the End User License Agreement between the State and the software manufacturer, IBM. 

	[Offeror Name] is merely reselling the software licenses issued by the software manufacturer, IBM. The RFP provision listed above deals with rights associated with the software licenses. The State’s rights with respect to the software licenses are specified in the end user license agreement between IBM and State. 

	Notwithstanding the provisions of sections 14.1, 14.4, and 14.7 of Appendix B – On Premise Contract, Offeror proposes the following language to govern products warranties: All product warranties reside with the software manufacturer. All other express and implied warranties are disclaimed.

	[Offeror Name] is the reseller of the product, and all product warranties reside with the manufacturer, which can be passed by [Offeror Name] to the State, to the extent assignable As such, all returns are in accordance the manufacturer’s return policy, and your dedicated [Offeror Name] account team can provide full details. 

	Notwithstanding the provisions of sections 8 and 14.4 of Appendix B – On Premise Contract, all Third Party Services (meaning certain services other than services provided by Offeror, including, but not limited to, extended warranty service by manufacturers, that are sold by Offeror as a distributor or sales agent) will be provided by the software manufacturer (IBM) or its subcontractors. State will look solely to the software manufacturer for any loss, claims or damages arising from or related to the provision of such Third Party Services.

	[Offeror Name] is merely the reseller of the Third Party Services, including extended warranty services that will be provided by the software manufacturer, IBM. [Offeror Name] will not be performing these services, and is not contractually liable for their performance.

	Offeror proposes the following terms to govern the ownership of the Work Product: Offeror proposes that the State shall have a non-transferable, non-exclusive, royalty-free license to use all work product created during the performance of Services for its internal use.

	[Offeror Name] comment: The proposed language seeks to protect [Offeror Name] methods, practices, know-how and knowledge in creating, providing and performing any on-site services. The aforementioned information exists prior to delivery and will be provided independently to other customers outside of this agreement, not including any proprietary information of the State.

	Offeror proposes the following service warranty provisions for this RFP: Offeror warrants that services that it provides will be performed in a good and workmanlike manner. Offeror will reperform or issue a refund for noncompliant services provided that it is notified in writing no more than thirty (30) business days after completion of each applicable portion of services. This warranty is voided if the Work Product is altered by anyone other than Offeror or any of its Affiliates or any of its or their Personnel, or if the environment in which the Work Product operates or is used (including the physical, network and systems environments) is altered and such environmental alterations directly or indirectly contribute to the warranty claim.

	[Offeror Name] seeks the industry standard 30 day cure period, allowing [Offeror Name] the fullest opportunity to cure any potential problems, if any, sufficiently.

A.	The State does not agree to any of these additional provisions. See answer to question 297.

	323. 
	7
	1.6.1
	Q.	If the Vendor and State already have executed contracts in place, can those Agreements be leveraged for this project?

A.	No.

	324. 
	14
	3.1
	Q.	In the Project Overview, ECM functions for the pilot include the ability to capture, store, search, collaborate, manage and archive. Does the State want records management functionality included in the pilot as well?

A.	Yes.

	325. 
	14
	3.1.3
	Q.	The RFP provides system and data specifics for the existing FileNet environments needing to be upgraded and migrated on to new hardware or cloud environment. The RFP listed several other ECM environments as well (Section 3.1.3). Are we to assume that they need to be migrated over to the Enterprise ECM Solution, and if so will you be supplying the specifics on those so that they can be included in our response?

A.	See the answer to question 53 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	326. 
	14
	3.1.3
	Q.	For each of the ECM environments to be converted to the centralized solution, what is the release version?

A.	See the answer to question 54 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	327. 
	14
	3.1.3
	Q.	For each of the ECM environments to be converted to the centralized solution, what is the total number of documents and pages?  If number of pages in unknown, what is the average number of pages per document?

A.	See the answer to question 55 in Addendum 1 to this RFP. 

	328. 
	14
	3.1.3
	Q.	For each of the ECM environments to be converted to the centralized solution, are there any versions and if so are all versions required to be migrated or only the most current version?

A.	See the answer to question 56 in Addendum 1 to this RFP. 

	329. 
	14
	3.1.3
	Q.	For each of the ECM environments to be converted to the centralized solution, where is the content stored (i.e. SAN, Optical Disk, Centera, Snaplock, etc)?  What is the total volume of storage currently used to store content?

A.	See the answers to questions 1 and 57 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	330. 
	14
	3.1.3
	Q.	For each of the ECM environments to be converted to the centralized solution, how complex is the taxonomy (i.e. how many document classes and indexes are defined on the system)?

A.	See the answers to questions 1 and 58 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	331. 
	14
	3.1.3
	Q.	Can you please list all the Capture devices currently being used and which ones (if any) that you want replaced?

A.	It is anticipated the agencies involved in this project will keep the scanners they have or acquire similar ones. For the pilot, DLI anticipates using flatbed desktop scanners. When upgrading or replacing FileNet, the agencies will use the scanners they already have, probably not replacing them. Here is a list of known scanners throughout the State:

· Bookeye
· Canon 9080C
· Canon DR-G1100
· Canon DR-5010C
· Castelle FaxPress
· Epson GT 2000 Scanner
· Fujitsu 6140z
· Fujitsu F16770A 2010
· Fujitsu FI5120c
· Fujitsu FI6140
· Fujitsu FS-55306 Scanner
· Fujitsu Scan Snap IX500
· Fujitsu, 5650c
· Fujitsu, 6140z
· Fujitsu, 6760a
· Fujitsu, 6770a
· HP Color LaserJet 2820
· HP Color Laserjet 4540 MFP
· HP Photosmart C4680
· HP Scanjet N9120
· IBML high speed scanners - Image Trac 3EX – 2009
· ImageNow
· ITC
· Kodak i1220
· Kodak i1440;
· Kodak i610
· Konica Minolta C754 Series PCL
· Konica MultiFunction Devices
· Ricoh
· Scanners within multi-function machines rather than imaging systems
· Toshiba 335 SE (State copier)
· Toshiba eStudio 255SE
· Toshiba eStudio 355 SE
· Toshiba estudio 455se
· Toshiba eStudio 6540c
· Toshiba Multi-Function Printer (5) – 2011
· Toshiba Studio 555-SE and 3555-SE Photocopiers
· Many and various flatbed scanners
· Xerox multifunction


	332. 
	15
	3.2.2
	Q.	How much assistance will the State need to either transition or implement their existing workflows to the new ECM solution?  The RFP states that there are currently 17.4 million workflow objects.  How many workflow maps? 

	How many workflow queues are currently deployed and are they typically tied to a role or a type of step?  

	What is currently used for the workflow client (i.e. Workplace/Workplace XT/Custom application/ECM Widgets/Business Process Framework)?  

	Are there any requirements to implement new workflows?  If so, please describe and/or provide workflow maps. 

	Will there be a need for system state dashboards (current number of work items in queues, numbers of active cases?

	Are there existing electronic forms that will need to be used or migrated to a case-based solution? If so, how many are there and what technologies are utilized.

	For workflow processing are there any 3rd party systems that need to be accessed via the UI or as part of a workflow routing process?  If so, how many and in what method are they accessed (via UI or workflow and by SOAP/custom API/JSON-based RESTful service)?

	For a given line of business that will be migrated to a case management solution, what are the average number of workflows/steps/maps/submaps to the workflows for their given process(es)?

A.	State answer:

“How much assistance will the State need to either transition or implement their existing workflows to the new ECM solution?  The RFP states that there are currently 17.4 million workflow objects.  How many workflow maps?”

A. The DLI UI workflow is currently running in VW workflow within FileNet Image Services.  DLI or the State would need to re-write this workflow to run in the solution chosen by the RFP process.  There is one map or CDL file for this VW workflow. Please see the attachment to addendum 3 posted on the solicitation website.

	“How many workflow queues are currently deployed and are they typically tied to a role or a type of step?”

A. See the answers to questions 61 and 181.

	What is currently used for the workflow client (i.e. Workplace/Workplace XT/Custom application/ECM Widgets/Business Process Framework)?  

A. The client is a combination of custom application, FileNet Panagon Visual Workflow and IDM Desktop. The DLI workflow is still in Image Services using VW.  This document class and workflow have not been migrated to P8. Also, see the answers to questions 61 and 181.

Q.“Are there any requirements to implement new workflows?  If so, please describe and/or provide workflow maps.”

A. We have had customers requesting workflows in the past, but they have not signed an agreement to implement any.  I believe new workflows would be implemented in the future, we do not have any workflow maps to provide.  Also, see the answer to question 6.

	“Will there be a need for system state dashboards (current number of work items in queues, numbers of active cases?”

A. Yes, if more workflows are implemented, dashboards would be beneficial.

	“Are there existing electronic forms that will need to be used or migrated to a case-based solution? If so, how many are there and what technologies are utilized.”

A. We currently do not have any electronic forms being used.

	“For workflow processing are there any 3rd party systems that need to be accessed via the UI or as part of a workflow routing process?  If so, how many and in what method are they accessed (via UI or workflow and by SOAP/custom API/JSON-based RESTful service)?”

A. The current DLI workflow interacts with Oracle Forms and Applications and a custom application. Also, see the answers to questions 22, 61 and 181.

	“For a given line of business that will be migrated to a case management solution, what are the average number of workflows/steps/maps/submaps to the workflows for their given process(es)?”

A. See the answer to question 6.

	333. 
	16
	3.2.2
	Q.	For the “From Scratch” portion of the project, can you provide more details on the MyWorks software (version, architecture, etc..) for integration scoping purposes?

A.	See the answer to question 6.

	334. 
	16
	3.2.2
	Q.	In the pilot project, what is the assumption that should be used regarding the number of basic vs advanced users?

A.	See the answer to question 6.

	335. 
	16
	3.2.2
	Q.	What new (advanced) functionality is desired in the pilot project (i.e., records management, eDiscovery, case management, etc…)?

A.	No advanced functionality is desired at this time. Basic uploading of content/documents, with the ability to view those documents. For costing purposes, assume some basic OCR/ICR and some basic mobile upload/viewing capabilities.

	336. 
	17
	3.2.2
	Q.	How does the Department of Labor want to initially use the new system (similar as today or with increased functionality)?

A.	Similar as today.

	337. 
	16
	3.2.2.1
	Q.	Please confirm that the the “MyWorks” integration in the Work Plan for “From Scratch” Pilot Implementation is required regardless of which system is being proposed.

A.	See the answers to questions 1 and 59 in Addendum 1 to this RFP. 

	338. 
	16
	3.2.2.2
	Q.	Can you provide an architecture diagram of your current FileNet P8 architecture?

A.	See the answer to question 428. No architecture diagrams will be supplied on advice from the State’s security group.

	339. 
	16
	3.2.2.2
	Q.	What is your current FileNet P8 4.5.1 database vendor and version?

A.	Oracle 11.2.0.2.

	340. 
	17
	3.2.2.3
	Q.	Is it the State’s long-term goal/intention to consolidate all content for current systems/repositories into one repository?

A.	The State does not have a long-term goal to consolidate all content into one repository.  However, we are interested in learning about the benefits of having a single repository that all agencies could use and customize to meet their agency-specific requirements. Currently, all document classes are in one Object Store.

	341. 
	17
	3.2.2.3
	Q.	In terms of infrastructure, how many environments will the State be using?  For example, DEV, TEST, UAT, PROD, DR?  

A.	Dev, Test, & Prod.

	342. 
	22
	3.3.3
	Q.	Please confirm whether the Pilot project for the Department of Labor and Industry (DLI) will represent all of the requirements to be implemented in Production (after a successful demonstration of the pilot).  Also, please confirm whether the Pilot requirements will be used by other agencies.  Will there be new requirements for other agencies?  If so, please provide.

A.	See the answer to question 60 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	343. 
	25
	3.4
	Q.	Business Requirement Records Management

	What percentage of your data does the State anticipate to be records?

	Does the State want to preserve non-records that have business value beyond regulatory retention?

	Is the State focused only on Unstructured content (File Shares, eMail, etc.) and/or Structured (applications) for records purposes?

	How many retention schedules / record classes do you have?
	How are those retention schedules currently managed / what about changes?
	Does the State know where their records are?  If so, are they foldered and easily findable?
	Does the State require stubs be left on a file share after a document has been archived?

A.	State answers:

· Q: What percentage of your data does the State anticipate to be records?
A: Approximately 30-50% once the use of the system in Montana has reached maturity. At present, some existing systems contain only records. There would also be an archival increase of new electronic data that does not yet exists once historic paper records were scanned. Probably over half of DNRC's information, for example, would be records due to the long-term/historical retention of our land and water files.

· Q: Does the State want to preserve non-records that have business value beyond regulatory retention?
A: Yes, if by "non-record" you mean information that is a finite part of a business process that needs to be kept for a certain amount of time. No, if you mean archive in the historic preservation sense.

· Q: Is the State focused only on Unstructured content (File Shares, eMail, etc.) and/or Structured (applications) for records purposes?
A: Both.

· Q: How many retention schedules / record classes do you have?
A: Please see the answer to question 261.

· Q: How are those retention schedules currently managed / what about changes?
A: The schedules themselves are determined by the SOS and individual agencies. Final approval of all retention schedules is overseen by the State Records Committee.

· Q: Does the State know where their records are?  If so, are they foldered and easily findable?
A: If you are referring to electronic records as maintained  in structured/shared folder systems, the answer is generally no although there are exceptions. Additionally, the ability to reference and connect the electronic portion of a record (e.g. e-mail or other born electronic) to the paper portion is inconsistent.

· Q: Does the State require stubs be left on a file share after a document has been archived?
A: No.

	344. 
	35
	3.4.2.5

	Q.	Question 10 – Please describe your off-line requirements and confirm that this question is related to storage options.

A.	No, this question is not related to storage options, per se, but to the ability, if any, to use your solution in an offline mode. Connectivity options in the State of Montana, such as cellular telephone, are still quite limited in some places and it is often very desirable to have the option of running at least parts of a system in an offline mode. This question is intended to allow offerors to discuss their offline options, if any. At this time the State does not have any mandatory offline requirements.

	345. 
	37
	3.5.1.1
	Q.	When identifying minimum specifications for the architecture, how many environments should be considered (i.e., Development, Test, UAT, DR, Production instances)?

A.	See the answer to question 341.

	346. 
	37
	3.5.1.1
	Q.	Is High Availability desired for the architecture? If so, does the state prefer an Active-Active of Active-Passive deployment?

A.	See the answer to question 141.

	347. 
	37
	3.5.2
	Q.	If a Cloud-based Solution is proposed, does the State prefer a managed services approach where the vendor provides administration services for the total solution (platform and software) or a hosted-only approach where the vendor supports the platform only with the State SITSD managing the ECM software?

A.	See the answer to question 61 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	348. 
	38
	3.5.2.3
	Q.	Are there (or will there be) any SLA requirements for the new ECM Solution?

A.	No, the State is looking for the most advantageous service level agreement.  As instructed in Section 3.5.2.3, you should propose and provide a service level agreement you believe is appropriate for the proposed ECM solution.

	349. 
	38
	3.5.2.5
	Q.	What uptime requirement and failure recovery time will be required for the production environment?

A.	Uptime: See the answer to question 43. Failure recovery requirements are only required for cloud-based offers. The State would like the offeror to propose what they have seen as typical requirements (from clients) and past performance in this area.

	350. 
	40
	3.6.2.6
	Q.	Can you elaborate on your security practice desires regarding secure application development? Are there specific application development best-practices currently being followed or other concepts involved?   

A.	The Application Technology Services Bureau has implemented an internal Software Development Life Cycle process for Microsoft and Oracle application development, however, the State does not have a published Enterprise Policy or Standard for application development.

	351. 
	42
	3.7.3
	Q.	Would the State be interested in a services option sharing estimate where the State assumes responsibility for the pilot Image Services upgrade and performs work under the guidance and direction of the vendor to help mitigate costs?

A.	No, the State would like the contractor to have complete responsibility for the pilot.

	352. 
	51
	5.1.1
	Q.	Please clarify exactly what you want Vendors to include in the TCO worksheet as it relates to this statement:  “If the State must provide equipment, licenses, services or other components as part of your proposed solution, you shall use the State’s current Service Catalog rate sheet to identify and quantify the cost components you specified in sections 3.5.1 and 3.5.2.”

A.	Offerors must identify and quantity all state costs associated with their proposal. Existing state resources (equipment, software licenses, staff) are not to be considered sunk costs and left uncounted. Offerors must identify all required state resources and quantities, and include their costs in the TCO spreadsheet.  The costs for state resources can be obtained from the state rate sheet at http://sitsdservicecatalog.mt.gov/content/documents/Rates/RateSheet.

	353. 
	51
	5.1.1
	Q.	Do you want Software Vendors who are responding to this bid to include actual hardware costs or just the hardware specifications so that the State can leverage & procure through your existing hardware procurement contracts?

A.	The specifications for the State-supplied hardware must be identified in section 3.5.  The actual cost of the state supplied hardware should be calculated from the state rate sheet located at  http://sitsdservicecatalog.mt.gov/content/documents/Rates/RateSheet.

	354. 
	51
	5.1.2
	Q.	Please define what makes up a basic user vs advanced user? How does Records Management (RM) fit into these definitions (should it be assumed that RM functionality is included in both these user types)?

A.	See the definitions provided at the beginning of Section 5 of the RFP.

	355. 
	51
	5.1.2
	Q.	Can you please further explain the calculation that you want the Vendors to use while computing the 5 year TCO to ensure that the State’s mandatory cost criteria is met? How can each Vendor be sure that we are calculating the State’s portion of those costs correctly?

A.	The Offeror’s TCO will be taken from the TCO spreadsheet, 5.1.1TCO worksheet, cell W82 labeled “TCO over 5 years.”  That cell should total all offeror and State costs.  The Offerors response will be checked for accuracy by the state’s RFP evaluation team.  If the evaluation team suspects an offeror error in calculating the State’s costs, they will resolve the issue by contacting the offeror.  

	356. 
	51
	5.2.2
	Q.	When determining the 5 year TCO, how can each Vendor be sure that we are calculating the State’s portion of those costs correctly?

A.	The Offerors response will be checked for accuracy by the state’s RFP evaluation team.  If the evaluation team suspects there was an offeror error in calculating the State’s costs, they will resolve the issue by contacting the offeror.  

	357. 
	Appendix D
Requirements Matrix
	Ref # 77
	Q.	The system shall provide for the ability to capture social media data as a record. What types of social media are to be captured? Is there a desire for automated or manual capture of social media posts?

A.	See the answer to question 32 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	358. 
	Appendix D
Requirements Matrix
	Ref #170
	Q.	The system shall provide a cross-reference of similar “type of business record” terminology. Please explain how this desired cross-reference would function.

A.	This functionality serves as a dictionary, especially when developing and managing file plans.  An example might involve invoices.  The official departmental title for invoices might be “Vendor Invoices”.  However, one or more business units might refer to them by any number of names, such as “Vendor Bills”.  This system functionality serves to translate the terminology used by a given business unit into standard agency terminology to aid in the management of agency content.

	359. 
	Appendix D
Requirements Matrix
	Ref #178
	Q.	The system shall provide a means to remove select auto-generated records listed in a disposal request. Please explain the meaning of auto-generated records and what should take place when the record is removed from the disposal request.

A.	This is simply the ability to see what records the system is recommending (based on rules) for disposal and to remove those records from the disposal list if desired. Records retention rules should always include the option to set them up to recommend an action, but to not act on that recommendation until the authorized user has had the chance to remove records from the list and has given approval to continue with the disposal.

	360. 
	Appendix D
Requirements Matrix
	Ref #179
	Q.	The system shall identify that a record ready for disposition is checked out of the repository and the system shall provide notification to a user-defined list of persons. Does this apply to physical records?

A.	Yes.

	361. 
	Appendix D
Requirements Matrix
	Ref #185
	Q.	The system shall provide a means to capture, maintain, and display a unique locator ID for records identified in a File plan. Please explain how the unique ID is captured. Is this in addition to the system provided unique ID?

A.	This may be an ID that is unique to and created by the organization. It would be metadata input by the users. It is not the same as a system-generated unique ID.

	362. 
	Appendix D
Requirements Matrix
	Ref #193
	Q.	The system shall support user-defined records relationships. Please explain the meaning of user-defined relationships and how they are to be used by the proposed system.

A.	User-defined relationships are ones created by rules set up by the users of the system and may not be based on “obvious” relationships obtained through system-defined metadata.

	363. 
	Appendix D
Requirements Matrix
	Ref #205
	Q.	Does the State have a enterprise reporting tool currently in use today?

A.	No.

	364. 
	Appendix D
Requirements Matrix
	Ref #
248
	Q.	The system shall provide for eSignature, and e-professional stamps (notary, PE, etc.). Please explain the desired use of esignatures and stamps.

A.	As part of the process of approving documents and other content, and to ensure such approvals have been made by those with the authority to do so, eSignature and professional stamp capabilities are required. For example, if the Governor has to approve something electronic as part of a workflow, s/he needs an eSignature. If a professional engineer needs to approve some building plans as part of a workflow, s/he needs to electronically affix their professional stamp to those plans.

	365. 
	Appendix D
Requirements Matrix
	Ref #
263
	Q.	The system shall have the ability to encrypt selected data at rest, not just store it in its native form. What is the state currently using for encryption? Is there a standard?

A.	Advanced Encryption Standard (AES), 256-bit encryption key string. One agency currently uses encryption for data at rest.

	366. 
	Appendix D
Requirements Matrix
	205
	Q.	Does the State have an enterprise reporting tool currently in use today?

A.	See the answer to question 363.

	367. 
	14
	3.1.2
	Q.	The successful offeror must have the capability, versatility and capacity to address all image, content, business process management, and records management requirements in an enterprise environment. Q: RFP states need capability for image, content, business process management and records management.  What does the State use currently for business process management?  What does the State use currently for records management?

A.	The solutions vary widely by agency. No “real” Records Managements systems are being used to any significant degree within the State. Some agencies are beginning to use SharePoint to some extent for workflow and BPM. Most of the current solutions are manual.

	368. 
	14-15
	3.1.3
	Q.	SITSD manages an IBM FileNet P8 ECM application which provides ECM services to 12 agencies  Q: How many internal FileNet users are there today in those 12 agencies?  How many FileNet internal user license entitlements does the State have now?  How many external FileNet users are there today?  How many FileNet external user license entitlements doe the State have now?

A.	Currently the State has 650 internal FileNet users.  We have internal license entitlements for 1500 users.  We do not have a metric system to count the number of external users and all access from external users is through public facing custom applications.  The State has external user license entitlements to cover around 1 million external users as per IBM, which was set based on the population of people in Montana.

	369. 
	15
&
38
	3.1.4
&
3.5.1.1
	Q.	an initial implementation of approximately 600 end-users to 2,000 users within 24 months, and further to an enterprise-wide deployment across multiple agencies and more than 5,000 end-users,

	The State desires a phased implementation schedule based on a 5-year term with an initial deployment of 650 – 1000 users in year 1; an additional 1,000 users each additional year, for a total of 5,000 users in year 5.   Q: On page 15 and 38 there are end-user numbers given - page 15 states there will be more than 5,000 end-users page 38 states for a total of 5,000 users --- what is the total number of users expected for the system?  Are these internal only users?   What is the total number of expected external users?  

A.	The State would like offerors to assume there will be 5,000 internal users at the end of five years. Following that, there will likely be more than 5,000 users. The “5.2 Scenario” tab in the TCO spreadsheet contains the assumptions you should use concerning number of public users at the end of each year.     Strike “more than” on page 37.  For purposes of estimating costs and infrastructure requirements, use the TCO worksheet, 5.2 Scenario tab, for the expected number of users.  Row 10, “cumulative system users at year end” is the internal user count.  Row 12, “public access users”, is the external user count.   

	370. 
	17
	3.2.2.2
	Q.	If your proposed solution is NOT IBM FileNet, this section shall be left blank and it will not be scored. The current IBM FileNet environment consists of:

· 200 users
	Q:  RFP states currently 200 users of FileNet is that FileNet P8 only or Image Services too?

A.	See the answer to question 368.

	371. 
	17
	3.2.2.2
	Q.	If your proposed solution is NOT IBM FileNet, this section shall be left blank and it will not be scored. The current IBM FileNet environment consists of:

· 200 users
	Q:  RFP states currently 200 users is this internal only users?  How many external users are there?

A.	See the answer to question 368.

	372. 
	10
	2.4.1
	Q.	Can an offeror only respond to the migration Services portion of the proposal and put N/A for software related questions?

A.	No. The State is looking for an Offeror who can propose both, with or without subcontractors. Offerors who do not respond to the software related questions will be found non-responsive.

	373. 
	16
	3.2.2.1
	Q.	Two local offices will participate: Havre and Missoula. All work will be done in Helena.  Q: Can the offeror work off-site, not in Helena, and visit on-site as needed?

A.	See the answer to question 5 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	374. 
	16
	3.2.2.1
	Q.	Is it mandatory for the offeror to have an office in Helena for the project work?

A.	See the answer to question 6 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	375. 
	16
	3.2.2.1
	Q.	During the conference call when questions about office space came up it was stated that the offeror may need to have office space for State employees that are on the project - Is this a requirement?

A.	See the answer to question 65 in Addendum 1 to this RFP. 

	376. 
	17
	3.2.2.2
	Q.	During the conference call it was stated that FileNet storage is NetApp, but the State is looking to migrate off NetApp.  Is this storage migration part of the RFP?  If so please provide additional details.

A.	See the answer to question 66 in Addendum 1 to this RFP. 

	377. 
	22
	3.3.2
	Q.	The contractor shall select and establish the primary project site in Helena, Montana where remote hardware configuration, possible local hardware installation and configuration, software installation and configuration, testing, and the pilot project will be performed.The establishment of a local project office is critical to the success of the project as there is not sufficient space available at the State to accommodate the contractor’s project team.   Q:  Does this mean the State will not consider any proposal that proposes doing remotely (not in Montana) software installation, configuration, testing and migration?

A.	See the answer to question 67 in Addendum 1 to this RFP. 

	378. 
	52
	5.1.2
	Q.	Will the State consider a software solution that does not license base on the State’s definition of a Basic and Advanced User?

A.	See the answer to question 68 in Addendum 1 to this RFP. 

	379. 
	52
	5
	Q.	Does the State plan on entitling the software licenses for users each of the 5 years as 1000 users per year? (reference 38 3.5.1.1)

A.	The State plans to acquire software licensing based on its estimates of actual user demand and the pricing available through a negotiated contract. The state will not be committing to 1000 user licenses in each of the next 5 years as part of the initial contract.   

	380. 
	General
	General
	Q.	What are the key business drivers or challenges that you are hoping to address with this project?

A.	The key business drivers are (in no particular order):
· More integrated collaboration between agencies. With the heterogeneous mix of imaging, workflow, and content management tools in existence today, it is very difficult for agencies to collaborate with each other. Workflows sometimes cross agency boundaries, and integrating that workflow is very difficult. In addition, one agency with authority to access another agency’s documents may have difficulty doing so due to licensing issues.
· Cost. Agencies using the current solution are paying more for their licenses than the State believes they should be. We’re caught in a situation where we must get more users using our current solution in order to reduce the per user cost, but we can’t get those users because it’s currently too expensive.
· Records Management. The State has established retention schedules for all State records. These retention schedules are current being enforced/adhered to largely manually. We need a more efficient and a more reliable way to ensure compliance with our retention schedules.

	381. 
	
	
	Q.	What do you consider to be the top three critical success factors for this project?  i.e., at the end of project delivery, how will we know that we’ve jointly delivered success to your constituents?

A.	Success has been achieved if, at the end of the pilot, we see a strong desire on the part of agencies to “come on board” and use the solution. This will be driven by these things: 1) Low Cost, 2) Robust Functionality, and 3) Ease of Use.

	382. 
	
	
	Q.	What qualifications are you looking for in a partner?  For example, we have four Microsoft Gold Competencies in Application Development, Business Intelligence, Application Integration and Content and Collaboration (i.e. SharePoint); will the proposal scoring take our credentials into account?

A.	The criteria to be used to evaluate each offeror are stated in the RFP.

	383. 
	
	
	Q.	Will certified Small Businesses receive any special consideration in this procurement?

A.	No the State laws of Montana do not provide for any preferential treatment for Small Business. 

	384. 
	
	
	Q.	Will preference be given to local vendors?

A.	No, the State laws of Montana do not provide for any reciprocal preference in an RFP.

	385. 
	
	
	Q.	Are you anticipating a mix of on-site and remote project delivery?  In our experience, we generally find it useful to be onsite during discovery meetings, installations, etc. however we can keep project and communication costs down by utilizing remote delivery for parts of the project.

A.	See the answer to question 6 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	386. 
	
	
	Q.	Regarding SharePoint as a possible ECM solution:
a.	How are you currently using SharePoint (e.g. collaboration portals, document management, intranet/extranet, ECM or ERM workloads, workflow/process automation, BI, etc.)?
b.	What version of SharePoint are you currently using?
c.	Do you have an Enterprise Agreement that includes SharePoint 2013 licenses and if so, for what version, Standard or Enterprise?
d.	What, if any, problems or dissatisfaction have you experienced with SharePoint?
e.	Given your experience with SharePoint, are there any requirements for the solution that you do not believe that SharePoint can address and if so, what are they?
f.	Do you have current SharePoint Governance in place, and has it been working effectively?
g.	What SharePoint skills do you currently have in house in terms of SharePoint Administration, Maintenance, Content Owner/Authorship, and Development?
h.	Are your SharePoint farms implemented in accordance with best practices and capable of housing this solution?

A.

	Answer to a: The State of Montana uses SharePoint for a variety of reasons including collaboration, document management, Electronic Content Management, Electronic Records Management, workflow, and as a platform to present KPI.   Currently the Enterprises is only available via intranet.   We do plan to make it available to outside users through the State owned and managed FIPS compliant Citrix NetScalers.

	Answer to b: Sharepoint 2010.

	Answer to c: Yes, the State has an Enterprise Agreement which includes our SharePoint licenses.

	Answer to d: Our greatest dissatisfaction would be with third party products in that support ownership is difficult to determine when problems arise.


	Answer to e: We must have the ability to easily archive data and we must consider the size of the related databases in regard to the level of effort to support them  Both issues are related to scalability.

	Answer to f: We currently do not have any policy in place that specifically address SharePoint.

	Answer to g: We have all of these skill sets in-house.  Our support team includes two administrators, multiple database administrators, virtual server management, storage management, and a SharePoint developer. Not only do we host SharePoint for State of Montana agencies, we are avid users of the product. 

	Answer to h: The Enterprise SharePoint farms are implemented in accordance with Microsoft best practices.  It is the offeror’s responsibility to provide the technical requirements for the proposed solution.  The State cannot say whether our SharePoint environment is capable of housing the proposed solution.

	387. 
	
	
	Q.	We are a SharePoint-focused consultancy and have successfully combined the SharePoint *platform* with various third party software products to create a comprehensive ECM/ERM solution where we are the sole provider of the end product or holistic solution. Do you see this as a viable option or are you strictly looking for a single–vendor COTS software package?

A.	The State is willing to consider all possible scenarios that will meet our needs.

	388. 
	
	
	Q.	Do you have any Microsoft Software Assurance vouchers that might be applied to the planning phase of the project?

A.	No.

	389. 
	
	
	Q.	Implementation decisions related to the design and development of software solutions can vary widely depending on project budget.  Our firm has delivered successful projects across various budget ranges.  To help us best meet the goals of your solicitation, can you please approximate a budget range for this project?  For example, is the anticipated budget range:
a.	Less than $250,000
b.	$250,000 – $350,000
c.	$350,000 – $500,000
d.	$500,000 – $750,000
e.	$750,000 - $1MM
f.	$1MM – $1.5MM
g.	$1.5MM - $2MM
h.	$2MM+

A.	See the answer to question 48.

	390. 
	
	
	Q.	Do you have a preference for a cloud-based vs. on-prem solution or are you completely neutral on this topic?

A.	See the answer to question 70 in Addendum 1 to this RFP. 

	391. 
	
	
	Q.	Have you seen demos of products and/or worked with any software vendors in developing this solicitation and if so, what demos have you seen and from which vendors?

A.	No, the State has not.

	392. 
	
	
	Q.	What document capture products do you currently have and do you intend/desire to continue to use them with the new solution or are you intending to replace the capture software as part of this procurement?

A.	SITSD and DLI are currently using FileNet Capture Professional and DataCap Taskmaster, respectively. We are open to both continuing to use our current solutions and using a new one. A December 2013 state-wide survey identified at least 9 different data capture hardware manufacturers and a half dozen capture software vendors in use at the State.

	393. 
	
	Section 3
	Q.	The RFP describe capabilities of the solution without detailing the explicit scope or requirement; can we interpret that to mean that the platform must have the capabilities listed, and that they must be demonstrable however, that there is no particular scope that needs to be estimated for these “capabilities” unless detailed in the RFP explicitly?

A.	Yes.

	394. 
	P 20
And
P 16
	3.2.5.5
And
3.2.2.1
	Q.	The RFP mentions integration to systems such as “Wendia”, “mWorks”, and other integrations: 
a.	Can we assume that the scope of work in this regard is limited to explaining how the system handles integration or is integration with other systems (e.g. ERM, BPM, etc.) within the scope of this project?  
b.	If so, which systems and what level of integration is anticipated and can you please provide the API (web services, object interface, etc.) information as provided by the software vendor?

A.	See the answers to questions 1 and 60 in Addendum 1 of this RFP. Actual integration of the solution with MWorks and the other existing application using FileNet is part of the scope of the project. For the other existing systems and products mentioned, the State is interested in knowing how your solution would integrate with those products, but the actual integration is not included in the scope of this product.

	395. 
	
	
	Q.	Is Active Directory properly configured with the fields, users, groups, permissions and roles anticipated to be used in the solution?

A.	Not yet.

	396. 
	15
	3.1.4
	Q.	The RFP states “approximately 600 end-users to 2,000 users within 24 months, and further to an enterprise-wide deployment across multiple agencies and more than 5,000 end-users”; how many users of the system should we use as a baseline for estimating the cost in our proposal?

A.	See the answer to question 71 in Addendum 1 to this RFP. 

	397. 
	
	
	Q.	Is external access to the system required and if so: 
a.	What audiences will require external access (e.g. vendors, employees accessing the system remotely, the public at large) and how many users comprise each audience?
b.	Will all audiences needing external access have AD accounts?
c.	Will all audiences need to login/authenticate in order to access the system or does anonymous access need to be supported as well?
d.	What features of the system will external access users be permitted to use (e.g. access to certain document only, all features, etc.)?

A.	State answers:
a.	Primarily the public at large, although state employees may use VPN to access the system from home. The public will number into the tens of thousands.
b.	No.
c.	At this time, only users who have logged/authenticated via our ePass Montana sign-in are envisioned to need access to the system.
d.	The public is expected to need to download and view content, as well as upload content into the ECM.


	398. 
	
	
	Q.	With regard to software product licensing:
a.	How many Web Frontend Servers do you currently have and/or anticipate having in the Production Farm and similarly in the Test Farm?
b.	How many applications servers
c.	How many total environments (e.g. Development, Staging, Production)

A.	The State has two SharePoint environments with very similar architecture.  Each environment has 3 production WFEs and one database server. Each environment has two Dev WFEs and one database server.

	399. 
	
	
	Q.	What disaster / recovery software (products, versions, etc.) do you currently use?

A.	None.  See answer to question 194.

	400. 
	
	
	Q.	Are Digital Signatures required in the solution and if so:
a.	Are all signers employees that are internal to your network and have AD accounts?
b.	Is there any requirement for external, non-employees to digitally sign artifacts?

A.	Digital signatures may be a component of the ECM solution.  Any internal users or signers will have AD accounts.  At this time there is no expectation of having external, non-employees digitally sign artifacts.  However, if you propose the use of digital signatures, you should provide a solution that will work for external non-employees as well as internal signers.

	401. 
	
	
	Q.	What are the system availability requirements for the solution as expressed in the table below?

	Availability %
	Downtime per year
	Downtime per month*
	Downtime per week

	90% ("one nine")
	36.5 days
	72 hours
	16.8 hours

	95%
	18.25 days
	36 hours
	8.4 hours

	97%
	10.96 days
	21.6 hours
	5.04 hours

	98%
	7.30 days
	14.4 hours
	3.36 hours

	99% ("two nines")
	3.65 days
	7.20 hours
	1.68 hours

	99.5%
	1.83 days
	3.60 hours
	50.4 minutes

	99.8%
	17.52 hours
	86.23 minutes
	20.16 minutes

	99.9% ("three nines")
	8.76 hours
	43.8 minutes
	10.1 minutes

	99.95%
	4.38 hours
	21.56 minutes
	5.04 minutes

	99.99% ("four nines")
	52.56 minutes
	4.32 minutes
	1.01 minutes

	99.999% ("five nines")
	5.26 minutes
	25.9 seconds
	6.05 seconds

	99.9999% ("six nines")
	31.5 seconds
	2.59 seconds
	0.605 seconds

	99.99999% ("seven nines")
	3.15 seconds
	0.259 seconds
	0.0605 seconds



A.	See the answer to question 141.

	402. 
	
	
	Q.	Are paper documents:
a.	Always the same, well-defined, standard forms with standard data (“structured”)
b.	Mostly similar documents with standard data that may be in different places on the document (“semi-structured”)
c.	A broad array of different documents with different data on them (“unstructured”)

A.	C: A broad array of different documents with different data on them (“unstructured”).

	403. 
	
	
	Q.	How many of each of the following types of devices do you currently have and/or will you need to acquire, and what are the brands/models of the existing devices:
a.	Single Workstation Scanner
b.	Multifunction Scan/Copy/Fax/Print
c.	Workgroup Scanner
d.	High capacity Scanner
e.	Copiers
f.	Other?

A.	See the answer to question 331.

	404. 
	
	
	Q.	How many users require document capture / scanning capability?

A.	The answer to this question will likely depend on the solution presented and its licensing model. Knowing the number of advanced and basic users we anticipate, please present what you believe is a reasonable number of document capture/scanning licenses we will require. Be sure to include this information in sections 3.2.1 and 3.9.

	405. 
	
	
	Q.	What is the current scanning volume per day/week/month?

A.	See the answer to question 153.

	406. 
	
	
	Q.	Are you currently using server-based scanning products to achieve the required throughput?

A.	There are a lot of different scanners being used throughout the state. The IBML scanners at DOR and the Canon scanners at DLI are probably the ones processing the most volume. We believe these are server-based scanning products, but that’s certainly not the only kind of scanning products in use at the State.

	407. 
	
	
	Q.	Do you require Bates Stamping/Numbering capability?

A.	No.

	408. 
	P 42
And
P 50
	3.7.2
And
5
	Q.	The RFP mentions electronic forms but does not provide any substantive details:
a.	What electronic forms do you anticipate having the selected vendor create?  Please quantify the number of forms, average number of fields for each form, relative complexity (e.g. validation required), and provide mockup or samples if possible.
b.	Given your experience with SharePoint, do you think that the out of the box SharePoint forms that are generated from a SharePoint list will satisfy your requirements for forms?

A.	a. See the answer to question 200.
b. Unlikely.

	409. 
	P 25
P 34
P 38
P 58
	3.4
3.4.2.5
3.5.2.2
4.3
	Q.	The RFP mentions reporting capabilities but does not provide any substantive details:
a.	Can you please provide details for the required reports including the number or reports anticipated?
b.	Can you please provide samples or mockups of the desired reports

A.	See the answer to question 251.

	410. 
	
	
	Q.	What do you anticipate in terms of the initial visual design and branding for the solution, for example: 
a.	Highly customized/branded
b.	Moderately customized/branded
c.	Functionally customized/branded
d.	Minimally customized/branded

A.	Minimally customized/branded. The State is expected to only need to minimally brand forms with a desire to customize them as little as possible.

	411. 
	
	
	Q.	What percentage of the project budget is intended to be used on the creative design / UX?

A.	The State has not quantified this figure. See the answer to question 48.

	412. 
	
	
	Q.	Do you anticipate that the look and feel/branding will/should be consistent across all agencies, departments, etc.?

A.	Only minimally. Each agency will likely want to preserve its own brand as found in its own websites.

	413. 
	
	
	Q.	Do you have a complete file plan including retention schedules and disposition policies?

A.	See the answer to question 261.

	414. 
	
	
	Q.	Have you developed your information architecture and:
a.	If so, can you quantify the number of document classes, content types and term-sets?  
b.	If not, is this in scope for the project?

A.	See the answer to question 60. See the answers to questions 1 and 58 in Addendum 1 to this RFP. The State expects some re-architecture will be necessary regardless of the chosen solution, but especially if FileNet is not chosen. The contractor will be expected to heavily participate and advise in this re-architecture.

	415. 
	
	
	Q.	Do you have an existing taxonomy for the enterprise and/or each department that is suitable for the solution?

A.	No.

	416. 
	
	
	Q.	What, if any, Enterprise Social capabilities do you anticipate as in scope for this endeavor and do you currently use an Enterprise Social technologies/products?

A.	See the answer to question 32 in Addendum 1 to this RFP. 

	417. 
	
	
	Q.	Is workflow in scope for this initial project and if so, can you provide flow diagrams for all required workflows?  

A.	See the answer to question 6.

	418. 
	
	
	Q.	Although flow diagrams are strongly preferred, if this is not possible, can you please provide a table of metrics indicating the number of workflows and level of complexity (e.g. 1-5) in your own estimation?   In the case of workflow, complexity rankings should consider:
a.	The number of steps in the workflow
b.	The number of participants (people or systems) involved in the workflow
c.	If it is sequential or parallel
d.	The source(s) of data involved in the workflow and the complexity in accessing them
e.	Any requirements for long running or cross application workflows
f.	Any requirements for callouts to custom code
g.	The requirements, rules and policies for the execution of the workflow
h.	Escalation and/or remediation requirements
i.	Requirements for administration and reporting of workflow performance
j.	Any other requirement that may contribute to the complexity of the workflow development, execution, or administration

A.	See the answer to question 6.

	419. 
	
	
	Q.	With regard to multi-media content, can you please indicate:
a.	What tools were used to create videos
b.	The format that videos are recorded/saved in
c.	If it is acceptable to assume that videos have already been saved in a compressed format
d.	The range and average dimensions of a video when playing
e.	The number of layouts you anticipate needing to accommodate the different dimensions
f.	The average size on disk of a video
g.	The total size of all videos combined
h.	What if any players or plug-ins are installed on the end user desktop 
i.	How you want the video to render (e.g. in a desktop application, in a separate browser window, in-line in a single browser window, etc.)
j.	What other content is anticipated to be on the page with the video (i.e. how much screen real estate is dedicated to the video)
k.	Any other specifics about the intended user experience, performance, etc

A.	The following answers do not reflect an exhaustive description of the State’s current environment or potential future needs, but are representative only.

a. Flash, Movie Maker, Final Cut.
b. flv, .wmv, .mp4
c. Yes.
d. Unknown for all, but best guess is 640 x 480.
e. One
f. Unknown
g. Unknown
h. Typically only Windows Media Player or Quick Time.
i. In-line, single browser is preferable for website.
j. Text.
k. No


	420. 
	
	
	Q.	What is your vision for the Post Implementation Support in terms of a Service Level Agreement, i.e. turn-around time, number of hours per week, hours of coverage, etc.?

A.	See Section 3.10 for the State’s requirements for Technical Support.  

	421. 
	
	
	Q.	Do you have internal resources to handle Level-1 support (e.g. training questions, hardware or network problems, etc.)?

A.	Yes.

	422. 
	
	
	Q.	Do you have Help-Desk software to manage support requests and will the chosen vendor have (external) access to this system?

A.	SITSD’s help desk software is Wendia POB. External access can be made available.

	423. 
	
	
	Q.	What is the target completion date for the entire project?

A.	The State does not have a target completion for the entire project. Keep in mind the scope of this project includes only the pilot (MWorks) and the migration from or upgrade to FileNet (including the upgrade to those applications that are current using FileNet).

	424. 
	
	
	Q.	With regard to FileNet Migration: 
FILENET MIGRATION SPECIFIC QUESTIONS:
(Please answer if using FileNet “Content Services”)


A.	OK.

	425. 
	
	
	Q.	How many FileNet Content Services do you have?  If you have more than one, some of these questions may need to be answered for each system.

A.	The State currently has one IBM FileNet P8 Content Manager system per Test, Dev and Prod environments.  We do not have Content Services.

	426. 
	
	
	Q.	What version of FileNet Content Services is used

A.	IBM FileNet P8 Content Manager 4.5.1.  We do not have Content Services.

	427. 
	
	
	Q.	Does the FileNet system utilize an Oracle or SQL Server database?  What version?

A.	Oracle 11.2.0.2

	428. 
	
	
	Q.	How many FileNet servers are utilized?  If more than one, provide a breakdown of how each server is used by FileNet.

A.	The State has three environments of FileNet P8 and three environments of Image Services, Test, Dev and Prod.  In each Image Services environment, we have one AIX server, and the Oracle database resides on a separate database server.  In each P8 environment: one PE AIX server, one CE server, one Content Search server, one Content Collector server, one Rendition Engine server, one Workplace XT server, two Application Engine servers, the databases for CE and for PE reside on separate database servers.  Current P8 system is running on jBoss.  We do not have Content Services.

	429. 
	
	
	Q.	Where are documents stored?  File system?  SAN?  Disk Xtender (Optical)?  If 3rd party tools are used, please list product name, vendor and version.

A.	All documents are stored on 2 Netapp 2240-4 arrays.  The SITSD Storage bureau would like to replace this device, a replacement has not been chosen yet that is compatible with iSDS in Image Services.

	430. 
	
	
	Q.	What version of FileNet IDM Desktop is used?

A.	FileNet IDM Desktop is used only with FileNet Capture Professional installations and the one customer still using Image Services, VW and a custom application.  Currently 4.0.2.9 is installed.

	431. 
	
	
	Q.	How many Document Classes are used?

A.	61 document classes are in the IBM FileNet P8 and Image Services system.

	432. 
	
	
	Q.	How many indices per document class are used?

A.	Each document class uses its own unique list of indices.  23 is the highest number of indices in one document class.

	433. 
	
	
	Q.	Determine the number of documents and version stored in the system.
a.	Select count(*) from ELEMENT – this will provide the total number of documents in the system.
b.	Select count(*) from ELEMENT where E_PROTECTED = 0 – This is the number of object that are Unprotected.  These are objects that do not have an associated document stored in Content Services.
c.	Select count(*) from VERSION – this will provide the total number of versions in the system.  This will be the number of objects that will need to be migrated. 
d.	Select count(*) from VERSION where V_CHECKED_OUT = 1 – The number of document versions currently checked out.
e.	Select count(*) from VERSION where V_AVAIL_STAT <> 1 
i.	1=Online
ii.	2=Offline (Reclaimable)
f.	Select c_name, c_version from CATALOG – The number of property servers and database version.
g.	Select g_name from GRP – a list of all the groups.
h.	Select count(*) from GRP_USR – a list of users and their associated groups.
i.	Select * from INA_INFO – A list of all custom properties in the system.
i.	1=String
ii.	3=Integer
j.	Select * from STORAGE_ALLOC – List the storage categories

A.	These tables are not present in P8 or Image Services, could this be in reference to a different system?  We do not have Content Services.

	434. 
	
	
	Q.	Are FileNet Folders utilized?  
a.	What is the business reason for the folders?   Searching?  Security?
b.	Are documents filed in multiple folders?
c.	Navigating to FileNet Neighborhood in Windows Explorer will indicate if folders are used.  The underlying SQL table is FLDR_KW

A.	Folders are only used in special cases where an agency customer needs a staging area for pending documents or if the agency customer is a Content Collector customer.  If a folder is used, a document would normally only be filed in one folder.  FileNet Neighborhood is not used by our one agency customer still in Image Services.

	435. 
	
	
	Q.	Does the repository contain any unprotected (external) items?

A.	Yes.  The only external items are links to documents stored on internal share drives or links to websites.  

	436. 
	
	
	Q.	What types of documents are stored in the repository?  
a.	Single or Mulit-Page TIFF? PDF? Office Documents? Emails? Other?
b.	Are there any proprietary documents formats?
c.	Are there any searchable PDFs?  If so, are searchable PDFs a requirement going forward?

A. State answer:
a. Single page TIFF, Multi-page TIFF, PDF, Office Documents, Emails, Crystal Reports, TXT, other image formats.
b. MC:  Yes.
c. Yes.  Yes.  

	437. 
	
	
	Q.	For TIFF documents, what is the average number of pages per document?

A.	4. See also the answer to question 81.

	438. 
	
	
	Q.	Security
a.	How is security handled?  
b.	Do any documents have document level security?  

A.	Authorization and authentication is based with Active Directory in P8.  Each document class has unique security. Yes, we have documents with document level security.

	439. 
	
	
	Q.	Annotations
a.	Are annotations utilized?  
b.	If so, do annotations need to be migrated to SharePoint?

A.	Yes.  If SharePoint is the chosen solution at the end of this RFP, then yes, annotations would need to be migrated to that solution.

	440. 
	
	
	Q.	Are versions utilized?
a.	How many versions exist?
b.	Are all versions considered “on-line”?  Are they assessable?  Are any archived?
c.	Will versions be used going forward?
d.	Do versions need to be migrated to SharePoint?

A.	State answer:
a. Versions per document? How many documents are versioned?  Not sure of what question a. is really asking.
b. Yes, versions are on-line and can be accessed by users with certain level of security in document class.
c. Yes, versioning will be used going forward.
d. If SharePoint is the chosen solution at the end of this RFP, then yes, versions would need to be migrated to that solution.

	441. 
	
	
	Q.	Are there any compound documents (documents that have a link embedded in the document that points to another document within the same repository)?

A.	Yes.

	442. 
	
	
	Q.	Are Control Value Lists’s utilized?

A.	Yes.

	443. 
	
	
	Q.	Are there any multi-value fields?

A.	Yes.

	444. 
	
	
	Q.	FILENET MIGRATION SPECIFIC QUESTIONS:
	(Please answer if using FileNet “Image Services”)

A.	OK.

	445. 
	
	
	Q.	Does the FileNet system utilize an Oracle or SQL Server database?  What version?

A.	See answer to question 427.

	446. 
	
	
	Q.	What version of FileNet Image Services is used?  What hardware platform (i.e. Windows, Unix)?

A.	4.1.2. Unix AIX.

	447. 
	
	
	Q.	How many FileNet servers are utilized?  If more than one, provide a breakdown of how each server is used by FileNet (i.e. combined, application, cache, BES).

A.	One server per environment is used.

	448. 
	
	
	Q.	How many Page/Retrieval Caches defined?  And size?  This will only apply if the FileNet system utilizes an OSAR for storage of documents. 
a.	The fn_edit utility will enable you to look at the configuration of FileNet including the cache size.

A.	We do not utilize OSAR.

	449. 
	
	
	Q.	Where are documents stored?  OSAR?  SAN?
a.	Are any optical disks stored offline?  Offsite?  
b.	How many drives are in OSAR/Jukebox?  

A.	NetApp storage array using iSDS.

	450. 
	
	
	Q.	What version of FileNet IDM Desktop is used?

A.	FileNet IDM Desktop is used only with FileNet Capture Professional installations and the one customer still using Image Services, VW and a custom application.  Currently 4.0.2.9 is installed.

	451. 
	
	
	Q.	Obtain an Index/Database Statistics report of the repository.  This report will show how many documents are in the library, a breakdown by a document class/type/library, information regarding the use of folders, archived documents, document id number ranges and index fields.
a.	Run ixdb_stat from FileNet server

A.	The output from this exercise can be found in the additional documents released with this addendum.

	452. 
	
	
	Q.	Obtain information about how documents are segregated (document class/type/library) and detailed index field information.
a.	Use Application Executive (Xapex).  Select Database Administration and then select the following reports.  These reports can be saved to a text file.
i.	Reports for Disk Families
ii.	Document Classes
iii.	Indexes

A.	The output from this exercise can be found in the additional documents released with this addendum.

	453. 
	
	
	Q.	Obtain Detailed Group Security Report
a.	Application Executive|Security Administration|Groups|View Detail.  This report can be saved to a text file.

A.	This will not be provided as it is our practice to not publish any sort of security report on the internet.

	454. 
	
	
	Q.	Are FileNet Folders utilized?  
a.	What is the business reason for the folders?   Searching?  Security?
b.	Is foldering a business requirement going forward?
c.	Are documents filed in multiple folders?

A.	See question 434.

	455. 
	
	
	Q.	What types of documents are stored in the repository?  
a.	Single or Mulit-Page TIFF? PDF? Office Documents? Emails? Other?
b.	Are there any proprietary documents formats? COLD?  FileNet Forms?
c.	Are there any searchable PDFs?  If so, are searchable PDFs a requirement going forward?

A.	See question 436. 

	456. 
	
	
	Q.	Security
a.	How is security handled?  
b.	Do any documents have document level security?  

A.	See question 438.

	457. 
	
	
	Q.	Is a pre-fetch application utilized?  If so, when does it run and what does it pre-fetch?

A.	No prefetch is being utilized in Image Services.

	458. 
	
	
	Q.	Annotations
a.	Are annotations utilized?  
b.	If so, do annotations need to be migrated to SharePoint?

A.	See question 439.

	459. 
	
	
	Q.	Is FileNet COLD utilized?  Overlays?

A.	No. No.

	460. 
	
	
	Q.	Is FileNet Workflow or any other type of workflow used?

A.	Yes, one customer is using VW.

	461. 
	
	
	Q.	Are the FileNet retention schedules enforced?  Are documents actually closed, purged or archived in FileNet?

A.	The State does have closed documents.  Retention schedules are set on the iSDS level.  We do not use any scheduled dates to purge documents.

	462. 
	
	
	Q.	Search and View	
a.	How are documents retrieved and viewed?  
b.	Are search templates or save searches utilized?  How many?
c.	Are users searching for documents based upon meta-data or content?

A.	Answering this from a P8 standpoint.  Documents are retrieved and viewed through search templates and stored searches.  All 61 document classes have their own out-of-the-box search template accessed via Workplace XT.  All use metadata, some utilize content.  There are also 19 internal and external public-facing custom applications used to search, retrieve and view documents which use both metadata and content.  One customer still in Image Services uses a custom application that is highly dependent on IS, VW workflow and DataCap.

	463. 
	
	
	Q.	How are documents added to the repository?  Capture application?  Custom application?

A.	From 200,000 to 500,000 documents are added monthly to the total FileNet ECM system.  We do not separate out the statistics for documents added by the entry templates, FileNet Capture Professional, other scanning software,  DataCap or Content Collector.

	464. 
	
	
	Q.	Classify the utilization of the current system?  (i.e. Slow Performance/Maxed-out/User Complaints,  Average performance, No Issues)

A.	Technically there are no issues.  Only user complaints usually concerning the price of a user license.

	465. 
	
	
	Q.	Are there any limitations on when the migration could be run?  For example, would the migration be restricted to evening hours or weekends?

A.	As long as the migration does not interfere with performance on the current system, migrations could be run without limitations.  If there is a performance hit, evening hours and weekends would be the preferred time.

When converting some systems, there will likely be a preference on timing. The DOR income tax system, for example, will be very busy the first quarter and a half of the calendar year. The offeror should anticipate working with each customer to determine the best time to convert their systems.

	466. 
	
	
	Q.	Has a migration strategy been considered?  Migrate all the content at once?  Department by department?  Go-forward only? Other?

A.	See the answer to question 73 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	467. 
	
	
	Q.	As an environmentally-friendly / Green company, we strive to reduce our consumption of paper; to that end, can respondents submit proposals electronically via email in lieu of hardcopy and CD/USB proposals?

A.	See the answer to question 74 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	468. 
	13
	2.7
	Q.	This section provides "State of Montana Software Standards". Can we assume that we can use this Enterprise software during implementation and we need not consider any cost for these?

A.	No. The State cannot assure the offeror that any software will be made available free of cost. Costs for software are included in our Service Catalog and should be included in your Cost Proposal.

	469. 
	14
	3.1.3
	Q.	This section lists various ECM environments within State Government. Can you provide how many agencies are using each of these ECM environments? This would help us to decide which environment would be best as target (consolidated) environment where cost of migration from existing environment would be less.

A.	See the answer to question 1 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	470. 
	22
	3.3.2
	Q.	We understand that scope of current project is only pilot with detail provided in "3.2.2.1 Work Plan for “From Scratch” Pilot Implementation". 

	Please suggest if scope of project also include "3.2.2.2 Upgrade Work Plan for IBM FileNet Environment" or not? Do we need to provide effort and cost for Upgrading/migrating existing FileNet environment or only need to include cost for creating work plan for this upgrade?

	Also please confirm that if we need to provide cost for any further implementation of proposed system for other agencies? If yes, then we would need additional timeframe to ask questions to size scope for that additional work.

A.	See the answer to question 76 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	471. 
	15
	3.1.3
	Q.	If upgrade of existing FileNet system is also in scope, then please provide the following details about the existing IBM FileNet environment-
a.	How many environments are being maintained currently (for example, dev, test, prod, pre-prod etc)?
b.	Provide the physical deployment architecture.
c.	Provide the logical architecture.
d.	Provide the software and hardware (with version & patch) details.
e.	Provide the type and number of IBM FileNet licenses available

A.	State’s answer:
a. Please see answer to question 341.
b. Please see answer to question 428.
c. Please see answer to question 428, no architecture diagram will be shared.
d. Please see answer to question 60.
e. Please see answer to question 368.

	472. 
	15
	3.2.1
	Q.	This section mentions about "Include in your response a detailed explanation of your end-user license metric and include a complete description of the functionality for each end-user license metric" - Can you clarify what is meant by end-user license metric? Do you need different licensing model of proposed ECM solution?

A.	End user license metric refers to the functional scope of the end user licenses and the basis for the license fee.  Common license metrics are often described as “named user” and “concurrent user.”   

	473. 
	16
	3.2.2.1
	Q.	This section provides good high level understanding for Mworks. But we need more detailed understanding and clarification about this system to be able to provide detailed and accurate work plan. Is it possible to have 1 session for discussing and understanding MWorks system? If not, then we need answer to below questions –

a.	What is meant by "Notes in Mworks are stored in database and assembled into documents as needed".  Can you explain with some examples? Some application screenshot would help.
b.	"Some other types of electronic documents will need to be stored (Word, PDF, scanned images) with some metadata." Where are these documents stored / managed in current Mworks system Or this is only for proposed system and in Mworks these documents are not stored at all.
c.	"Each case has 200-300 documents with a large amount of confidential info:”. Previous section states that "MWorks does not currently store any actual documents" then where are these 200-300 documents for each case stored?
d.	"Want to try not to duplicate the storage of information, i.e. both in a document and on the database."? In proposed ECM system all documents and database would be managed by ECM system then what is meant by no duplicating the information?

A.	See the answer to question 6.

	474. 
	17
	3.2.2.1
	Q. 	a.	Is MWorks an in house build system or is it a COTS product? If COTS product, provide the product vendor name.
b.	Provide the list of other use cases (apart from case management) that MWorks system supports (for example, scanning, capture, workflow, search etc).
c.	Provide the business flow for managing Job Services cases.
d.	Please provide the integration details of MWorks system and also the integration requirements for the pilot.
	
A.	See the answer to question 6.

	475. 
	20
	3.2.5.5
	Q.	Does the pilot needs to be integrated with POB (Service desk Application)? If yes, then please provide detailed integration requirements.

A.	No.

	476. 
	20
	3.2.5.8
	Q.	How do you intend to use Mobile Content synchronization in the pilot? 
· Do you want to synchronize only certain content or all the content to Mobile?
· Do you intend to browse the ECM site from mobile or you are expecting apps for each business process?

A.	See the answer to question 6.

	477. 
	22
	3.3.2
	Q.	"The establishment of a local project office is critical to the success of the project as there is not sufficient space available at the State to accommodate the contractor’s project team". Does State have minimum 2 seats for core HCL staff to be positioned along with State staff which would help with more efficient co-ordination?

A.	The State will work with the contractor to provide this small number of spots, but the contractor must be prepared to find their own if such positions are not available.

	478. 
	25
	3.4
	Q.	This section lists the processes and the use cases for the ECM solution, however it is our understanding that all of these use cases or processes are not in scope of pilot implementation. For pilot implementation, only “Case Management” use case needs to be implemented. Please confirm if this understanding is correct.

A.	See the answer to question 6.

	479. 
	26
	3.4.2.1
	Q.	Please specify the list of all languages content need to present in the pilot implementation.

A.	See answer to question 31 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	480. 
	27
	3.4.2.1
	Q.	Please list the name and number of legacy system for migration?

A.	See the answers to questions 1 and 76 in Addendum 1 to this RFP. Legacy system for migration in this project are limited to those currently using the FileNet solution.

	481. 
	29
	3.4.2.1
	Q.	Please specify the level of search expected in multiple repository & database search?

A.	The State has no specific vision in mind for this requirement. We are interested in knowing what your solution has to offer in this area, describe in your RFP response.

	482. 
	29
	3.4.2.1
	Q.	How many DMS systems do you indent to have as your ECM?

A.	One ECM system, customizable on the agency level, with distributable storage capabilities.

	483. 
	33
	3.4.2.3
	Q.	How do you prefer to store the RM documents?

A.	The centralized State SITSD division will store some of the RM documents in a central location on electronic media. Some agencies may choose to store these documents themselves on their own equipment. We need to have both options.

	484. 
	
	General
	Q.	How many registered users intend to use the ECM system across agencies?

A.	See the “5.2 Scenario” tab in the TCO spreadsheet for the numbers we would like you to use in your response.

	485. 
	
	General
	Q.	What is the peak concurrent usage in the span of 30 min?

A.	See the answer to question 18 in Addendum 1 to this RFP.

	486. 
	
	General
	Q.	Do you have any restriction on Commercial Open Source?

A.	Some. In order for the State to feel confident about Commercial Open Source (COS) software, we need to know how that software is controlled, from its creation, upgrade, distribution, etc. Should you propose using Commercial Open Source (COS) software, please provide information about its owners, its licensing, how its integrity is ensured, who can make updates to the code, whether it is your solution or a third-party product that is COS, etc. As is sometimes found in COS software, a portion of a product might be COS while another portion might be proprietary. If this is the case with yours, please explain how this is structured for your solution.

If you are proposing using a third-party COS product, an exception is made in this specific, restricted instance to allow for a reference to a URL that explains the COS. The State will visit this URL to research the COS product. Other information about the COS Product may be obtained from the Internet while visiting this site.
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